
KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
AGENDA OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS 
Wednesday, June 10, 2020 7:00pm 

Via Zoom Teleconference 

Due to COVID-19, and in accordance with California Executive Orders N-25-20 and N-29-20, 
the District Board meeting will not be physically open to the public and all Board Members will 
be teleconferencing into the meeting.  To maximize public safety while still maintaining 
transparency and public access, members of the public can observe the meeting by accessing 
https://zoom.us/j/91368089032 (on the day and time of the meeting) and may provide public 
comment by sending comments to the Board President and Board Clerk via email at 
public.comment@kensingtonfire.org.  Comments will then be read into the record, with a 
maximum allowance of 5 minutes per individual comment, subject to the Chair’s discretion. 

Any member of the public who needs special accommodations should email 
public.comment@kensingtonfire.org 48 hours prior to the meeting.  This will enable the 
Kensington Fire Protection District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title 1). 

Oral communications will be taken on each agenda item.  Each member of the public will be 
allotted the same maximum number of minutes to speak as set by the President before or 
during its consideration, except that public speakers using interpretation assistance will be 
allowed to testify for twice the amount of the public testimony time limit (California 
Government Code section 54954.3(a)). 

Please click the link below to join the webinar: 
https://zoom.us/j/91368089032 

Or iPhone one-tap : 
 US: +16699009128,,91368089032#  or +12532158782,,91368089032# 

Or Telephone: 
    Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 

 US: +1 669 900 9128  or +1 253 215 8782  or +1 346 248 7799  or +1 646 558 8656  or +1 
301 715 8592  or +1 312 626 6799 

    Webinar ID: 913 6808 9032 
 International numbers available: https://zoom.us/u/abp4vwVO7D 

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
Directors: Dom Dommer, Janice Kosel, Laurence Nagel, Kevin Padian, and Julie Stein

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS.  This place on the agenda is reserved for comments and
inquiries from citizens and Board members concerning matters that do not otherwise
appear on the agenda.  Speakers shall be requested to provide their names and
addresses prior to giving public comments or making inquiries.

3. ADOPTION OF CONSENT ITEMS.  Items 3.1 - 3.6 listed below are consent items, which
are considered to be routine by the Board of Directors and will be enacted by one motion.
The Board of Directors has received and considered reports and recommendations prior to
assigning consent item designations to the various items. Copies of the reports are on file



June 10, 2020 
Board of Directors Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 2 of 3 

in the Fire Protection District Administrative Office at 217 Arlington Avenue and are 
available to the public.  The disposition of the item is indicated.  There will be no separate 
discussion of consent items. If discussion is requested for an item, that item will be 
removed from the list of consent items and considered separately on the agenda. 

3.1. Approval of Minutes of the regular meetings of March 11, and April 8, 2020 and 
special meetings of January 25, March 4, March 11, April 15, and May 1, 2020 
(supporting material) (ACTION) 

3.2. Acceptance of Incident Activity Report May 2020 (ACCEPT) 

3.3. Approval of Monthly Financial Report May 2020 (APPROVE) 

3.4. Approval of Monthly Transmittal May 2020 (APPROVE) 

3.5. Approval of Resolution 20-05 Establishing the Appropriations Limit for Fiscal 
Year 2020-2021 (APPROVE) (supporting material) 

3.6. Approval of Resolution 20-06 Authorizing the County to Place the District’s 
Special Tax on the Tax Roll and to Collect the Special Tax for Fiscal Year 2020-
2021 (APPROVE) (supporting material) 

4. ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS
4.1. Fire Services Contract Fee Proposal for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 (ACTION) 

(supporting material) 

4.2. Adopt Resolution 20-07 Preliminary Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget (ACTION) 
(supporting material) 

4.3. RGS April Invoice and Contract Completion (ACTION) (supporting material) 

4.4. Accept Consultant’s Recommendation to Advertise the General Manager 
Position as Part-Time (ACTION) 

4.5. Proposed Amendment to Policy 130 Pay Periods (First Reading) (supporting 
material) 

4.6. Proposed Amendment to Policy 170 Discrimination, Harassment and 
Retaliation Prevention (First Reading) Kosel (supporting material) 

4.7. Proposed Amendment to Policy 180 Complaint and Investigation Procedures 
(First Reading) Kosel (supporting material) 

4.8. Proposed New Policy 185 Training Requirements (First Reading) Kosel 
(supporting material) 

4.9. Provide direction to the Interim General Manager to divise cost-sharing 
arrangements with KPPCSD for the potential renovation and report back to the 
Board (ACTION) 



June 10, 2020 
Board of Directors Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 2 of 3 

4.10. Accept the Kensington Evacuation Research Project Final Report dated January 8, 
2020 and refer implementation of recommendations to the Emergency 
Preparedness Committee at a cost not-to-exceed $5,000 with report back to Board 
of Directors. (APPROVE) Padian (supporting material) 

5. President’s Report
5.1. Review of recent Special Meeting decisions 

6. Fire Chief’s Report (supporting material)

7. Interim General Manager’s Report
7.1. KPPCSD Lease (supporting material) 
7.2. Update on Action Plan (supporting material) 

8. Board Reports
Informational reports from Board members or staff covering the following assignments:
a. Emergency Preparedness Committee (Padian/Nagel) (supporting material)
b. Information Technology Committee (Nagel/Stein)
c. California Special Districts Association Representatives:

i. County (Nagel)
ii. State Professional Development and Membership Services Committees (Kosel)

9. Adjournment



Draft Minutes of January 25, 2020 

Item 3.1 

P a g e  2 | 3 

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MINUTES 
Date of Meeting:  January 25, 2020  

Time of Meeting:  1:00 p.m.  

Place of Meeting:  Arlington Community Church, 52 Arlington Avenue, Kensington, CA  94707 

PRESENT: Directors Present: Don Dommer, Janice Kosel, Larry Nagel, Kevin Padian and Julie Stein  

CALL TO ORDER:  

President Stein called the meeting to order at 1:01 p.m. and called roll. 

1. Discussion and possible decision on a future staffing model for the Kensington Fire Protection
District and identification of impacts to existing policies and procedures. 

FIRST MOTION: M/s Nagel/Kosel: To adopt Option 3 in the Kensington Fire Protection District 
and Organizational Structure and further instruct RGS to come up with policy alterations to support 
Option 3. 
VOTE: Ayes: Dommer, Kosel, Nagel, Padian, Stein - Noes: None 
Motion passed unanimously.  Audio Time Stamped: 58.46 
SECOND MOTION: M/s Kosel/Dommer: RGS to prepare a draft job description of a GM and an 
Admin support staff, based on input from the committee of Kevin & Dom and that RGS give them 
time required for each position and salary ranges for each position. 
VOTE: Ayes: Dommer, Kosel, Nagel, Padian, Stein - Noes: None 
Motion passed unanimously.  Audio Time Stamped: 1.26.24 

2. Discussion and possible decision on adopting the summary minute format, also known as discussion
minutes or anecdotal minutes, for the District’s regular monthly board meetings. 

MOTION: M/s Kosel/Dommer: Effective Feb. 1 they will direct the President to select 1 model of 
minutes from 2019 as a model for further minutes of the Board and its committees. 
VOTE: Ayes: Dommer, Kosel, Nagel, Padian, Stein - Noes: None 
Motion passed unanimously.  Audio Time Stamped: 1.39.25 

3. Discussion and possible decision on adopting the summary minute format, also known as discussion
minutes or anecdotal minutes, for the District’s standing committee meetings and special board 
meetings. 

MOTION: M/s Kosel/Dommer: Effective Feb. 1 they will direct the President to select 1 model of 
minutes from 2019 as a model for further minutes of the Board and it’s committees. 
VOTE: Ayes: Dommer, Kosel, Nagel, Padian, Stein - Noes: None 
Motion passed unanimously.  Audio Time Stamped: 1.39.25 



Draft Minutes of January 25, 2020 

Item 3.1 

P a g e  2 | 3 

4. Discussion and possible decision to authorize the board president to seek proposals for governance
and structural recommendations for the Kensington Fire Protection District. 

MOTION: M/s Kosel/Padian: Table Item 4 pending receipt of RGS’s proposal changes on the 
policy manual relating to the interrelationship of the President and the General Manager.   
VOTE: Ayes: Dommer, Kosel, Nagel, Padian, Stein - Noes: None 
Motion passed unanimously.  Audio Time Stamped: 1.42.28 

ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting was adjourned at 2:48 p.m. 

MINUTES PREPARED BY:  Sasha Amiri-Nair 

These minutes were approved at the regular Board Meeting of the Kensington Fire Protection District on 
June 10, 2020. 

Attest: 

____________________________ 
Board Secretary  



Draft Minutes of January 25, 2020 

Item 3.1 

P a g e  2 | 3 

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MINUTES 
Date of Meeting:  January 25, 2020  

Time of Meeting:  1:00 p.m.  

Place of Meeting:  Arlington Community Church, 52 Arlington Avenue, Kensington, CA  94707 

PRESENT: Directors Present: Don Dommer, Janice Kosel, Larry Nagel, Kevin Padian and Julie Stein  

CALL TO ORDER:  

President Stein called the meeting to order at 1:01 p.m. and called roll. 

1. Discussion and possible decision on a future staffing model for the Kensington Fire Protection
District and identification of impacts to existing policies and procedures. 

FIRST MOTION: M/s Nagel/Kosel: To adopt Option 3 in the Kensington Fire Protection District 
and Organizational Structure and further instruct RGS to come up with policy alterations to support 
Option 3. 
VOTE: Ayes: Dommer, Kosel, Nagel, Padian, Stein - Noes: None 
Motion passed unanimously.  Audio Time Stamped: 58.46 
SECOND MOTION: M/s Kosel/Dommer: RGS to prepare a draft job description of a GM and an 
Admin support staff, based on input from the committee of Kevin & Dom and that RGS give them 
time required for each position and salary ranges for each position. 
VOTE: Ayes: Dommer, Kosel, Nagel, Padian, Stein - Noes: None 
Motion passed unanimously.  Audio Time Stamped: 1.26.24 

2. Discussion and possible decision on adopting the summary minute format, also known as discussion
minutes or anecdotal minutes, for the District’s regular monthly board meetings. 

MOTION: M/s Kosel/Dommer: Effective Feb. 1 they will direct the President to select 1 model of 
minutes from 2019 as a model for further minutes of the Board and its committees. 
VOTE: Ayes: Dommer, Kosel, Nagel, Padian, Stein - Noes: None 
Motion passed unanimously.  Audio Time Stamped: 1.39.25 

3. Discussion and possible decision on adopting the summary minute format, also known as discussion
minutes or anecdotal minutes, for the District’s standing committee meetings and special board 
meetings. 

MOTION: M/s Kosel/Dommer: Effective Feb. 1 they will direct the President to select 1 model of 
minutes from 2019 as a model for further minutes of the Board and it’s committees. 
VOTE: Ayes: Dommer, Kosel, Nagel, Padian, Stein - Noes: None 
Motion passed unanimously.  Audio Time Stamped: 1.39.25 



Draft Minutes of January 25, 2020 

Item 3.1 

P a g e  2 | 3 

4. Discussion and possible decision to authorize the board president to seek proposals for governance
and structural recommendations for the Kensington Fire Protection District. 

MOTION: M/s Kosel/Padian: Table Item 4 pending receipt of RGS’s proposal changes on the 
policy manual relating to the interrelationship of the President and the General Manager.   
VOTE: Ayes: Dommer, Kosel, Nagel, Padian, Stein - Noes: None 
Motion passed unanimously.  Audio Time Stamped: 1.42.28 

ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting was adjourned at 2:48 p.m. 

MINUTES PREPARED BY:  Sasha Amiri-Nair 

These minutes were approved at the regular Board Meeting of the Kensington Fire Protection District on 
June 10, 2020. 

Attest: 

____________________________ 
Board Secretary  



Draft Minutes of March 4, 2020 

Item 3.1 

P a g e  2 | 3 

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MINUTES 
Date of Meeting:  March 4, 2020 

Time of Meeting:  4:00 p.m.  

Place of Meeting:  Kensington Public Safety Building, Conference Room, 217 Arlington Avenue, 
Kensington, CA  94707 

PRESENT: Directors Present: Don Dommer, Janice Kosel, Larry Nagel, Kevin Padian and Julie Stein  

CALL TO ORDER:  

President Stein called the meeting to order at 4:03 p.m. and called roll. 

1. Review and Consideration of Approving a Final Draft Job Description for a General Manager to
be Used for Recruitment, Including the %FTE, and Possible Recruitment Strategies. 

MOTION: M/s Kosel/Nagel: Assign a full time equivalent of no more than ½ to the General 
Manager Position.  
VOTE: Ayes: Dommer, Kosel, Nagel, Stein - Noes: Padian 
Motion passed.  Audio Time Stamped: 29.28 

2. Review and Consideration of Approving %FTE to be Allocated to a Future Position for District
Support Staff and Consider Delegating the Hiring Authority for that Position to the General 
Manager.  

MOTION: M/s Kosel/Nagel: Authorize the soon to be General Manager to hire support staff at no 
more than ½ FTE.  
VOTE: Ayes: Dommer, Kosel, Nagel, Padian, Stein - Noes: None 
Motion passed unanimously.  Audio Time Stamped: 1.16.17 

ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting was adjourned at 5:22 p.m. 

MINUTES PREPARED BY:  Sasha Amiri-Nair 

These minutes were approved at the regular Board Meeting of the Kensington Fire Protection District on 
June 10, 2020. 

Attest: 

____________________________ 
Board Secretary  



Draft Minutes of March 4, 2020 

Item 3.1 

P a g e  2 | 3 

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MINUTES 
Date of Meeting:  March 4, 2020 

Time of Meeting:  4:00 p.m.  

Place of Meeting:  Kensington Public Safety Building, Conference Room, 217 Arlington Avenue, 
Kensington, CA  94707 

PRESENT: Directors Present: Don Dommer, Janice Kosel, Larry Nagel, Kevin Padian and Julie Stein  

CALL TO ORDER:  

President Stein called the meeting to order at 4:03 p.m. and called roll. 

1. Review and Consideration of Approving a Final Draft Job Description for a General Manager to
be Used for Recruitment, Including the %FTE, and Possible Recruitment Strategies. 

MOTION: M/s Kosel/Nagel: Assign a full time equivalent of no more than ½ to the General 
Manager Position.  
VOTE: Ayes: Dommer, Kosel, Nagel, Stein - Noes: Padian 
Motion passed.  Audio Time Stamped: 29.28 

2. Review and Consideration of Approving %FTE to be Allocated to a Future Position for District
Support Staff and Consider Delegating the Hiring Authority for that Position to the General 
Manager.  

MOTION: M/s Kosel/Nagel: Authorize the soon to be General Manager to hire support staff at no 
more than ½ FTE.  
VOTE: Ayes: Dommer, Kosel, Nagel, Padian, Stein - Noes: None 
Motion passed unanimously.  Audio Time Stamped: 1.16.17 

ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting was adjourned at 5:22 p.m. 

MINUTES PREPARED BY:  Sasha Amiri-Nair 

These minutes were approved at the regular Board Meeting of the Kensington Fire Protection District on 
June 10, 2020. 

Attest: 

____________________________ 
Board Secretary  



Draft Minutes of March 11, 2020 

Item 3.1 

P a g e  2 | 3 

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MINUTES 
Date of Meeting:  March 11, 2020  

Time of Meeting:  6:45 p.m.  

Place of Meeting:  Building E in Kensington Park, 59 Arlington Avenue, Kensington, CA  94707 

PRESENT: Directors Present: Don Dommer, Janice Kosel, Kevin Padian and Julie Stein 
 Absent: Larry Nagel 

CALL TO ORDER:  

President Stein called the meeting to order at 6:45 p.m. and called roll. 

1. Consideration of Authorizing the Board President to Obtain Proposals for Executive Recruitment
Services to Manage the Search and Hiring Process for a Permanent or Possibly Interim General 
Manager for the Kensington Fire Protection District.  

MOTION: M/s Padian/Dommer: Authorize the Board President to obtain proposals for executive 
recruitment services to manage the search and hiring process for a permanent or possible Interim 
General Manager for the District.  
VOTE: Ayes: Dommer, Kosel, Padian, Stein - Noes: None – Absent: Nagel 
Motion passed.  Audio Time Stamped: 8.11 

2. Consideration of Authorizing the Preparation of Action Minutes for all Meetings Conducted
September 1, 2019 through the Appointment of a General Manager for the Kensington Fire 
Protection District.   

MOTION: M/s Padian/Dommer: Authorize the preparation of action minutes for all meetings until 
they get a General Manager. 
VOTE: Ayes: Dommer, Padian, Stein - Noes: Kosel– Absent: Nagel 
Motion passed.  Audio Time Stamped: 12.23 

ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting was adjourned at 7 p.m. 

MINUTES PREPARED BY:  Sasha Amiri-Nair 

These minutes were approved at the regular Board Meeting of the Kensington Fire Protection District on 
June 10, 2020. 

Attest: 

____________________________ 
Board Secretary  



Draft Minutes of March 11, 2020 

Item 3.1 

P a g e  2 | 3 

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MINUTES 
Date of Meeting:  March 11, 2020  

Time of Meeting:  6:45 p.m.  

Place of Meeting:  Building E in Kensington Park, 59 Arlington Avenue, Kensington, CA  94707 

PRESENT: Directors Present: Don Dommer, Janice Kosel, Kevin Padian and Julie Stein 
 Absent: Larry Nagel 

CALL TO ORDER:  

President Stein called the meeting to order at 6:45 p.m. and called roll. 

1. Consideration of Authorizing the Board President to Obtain Proposals for Executive Recruitment
Services to Manage the Search and Hiring Process for a Permanent or Possibly Interim General 
Manager for the Kensington Fire Protection District.  

MOTION: M/s Padian/Dommer: Authorize the Board President to obtain proposals for executive 
recruitment services to manage the search and hiring process for a permanent or possible Interim 
General Manager for the District.  
VOTE: Ayes: Dommer, Kosel, Padian, Stein - Noes: None – Absent: Nagel 
Motion passed.  Audio Time Stamped: 8.11 

2. Consideration of Authorizing the Preparation of Action Minutes for all Meetings Conducted
September 1, 2019 through the Appointment of a General Manager for the Kensington Fire 
Protection District.   

MOTION: M/s Padian/Dommer: Authorize the preparation of action minutes for all meetings until 
they get a General Manager. 
VOTE: Ayes: Dommer, Padian, Stein - Noes: Kosel– Absent: Nagel 
Motion passed.  Audio Time Stamped: 12.23 

ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting was adjourned at 7 p.m. 

MINUTES PREPARED BY:  Sasha Amiri-Nair 

These minutes were approved at the regular Board Meeting of the Kensington Fire Protection District on 
June 10, 2020. 

Attest: 

____________________________ 
Board Secretary  



Draft Minutes of April 8, 2020 

Item 3.1

P a g e  3 | 3 

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT  
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MINUTES 
Date of Meeting:  April 8, 2020 

Time of Meeting:  7:00 p.m.  

Place of Meeting:  Via Zoom Teleconference 

PRESENT: Directors Present: Don Dommer, Janice Kosel, Larry Nagel, Kevin Padian and Julie Stein 

CALL TO ORDER:  

President Stein called the meeting to order at 7:04 p.m. and called roll. 

1. ADOPTION OF CONSENT ITEMS: Items 3, 4, & 5

MOTION: M/s Nagel/Padian. To adopt Consent Calendar Items 3,4 & 5 
VOTE: Ayes: Dommer, Kosel, Nagel, Padian, Stein - Noes: None 
Motion passed unanimously.  Audio Time Stamped: 2.53 

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS:

Commencement of Board member period for oral communications and public comments. 

(6 on Agenda) FIRE CHIEF’S REPORT:  

Chief Pigoni gave his report.  

(7 on Agenda) PRESIDENT’S REPORT:  

President Stein gave the President’s report. 

(8 on the agenda) EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS COMMITTEE REPORT. 

MOTION: No action 
VOTE: No action 

(9 on Agenda) 2x2 Committee Verbal Report. 

MOTION: No action 
VOTE: No action 



Draft Minutes of April 8, 2020 

Item 3.1

P a g e  3 | 3 

(10 on the agenda) Regional Government Services Report. 

MOTION: No action 
VOTE: No action 

(11 on Agenda) Consideration to Approving the Monthly Transmittal for April 2020. 

MOTION: M/s Padian/Nagel: To approve the monthly transmittal for April 2020 
VOTE: Ayes: Dommer, Kosel, Nagel, Padian, Stein - Noes: None 
Motion passed unanimously.  Audio Time Stamped: 1.47.34 

(12 on Agenda): Consideration of Extending KPPCSD Lease at Current Terms and Conditions Until a 
Date to be Decided by the Board and Authorizing the President to Offer Such an Extension to KPPCSD. 

MOTION: M/s Kosel/Padian. Instruct the attorney to revise the existing term of the lease and to extend 
it by 3 months and thereafter month by month. 

VOTE: Ayes: Dommer, Kosel, Nagel, Padian, Stein - Noes: None 
Motion passed unanimously.  Audio Time Stamped: 2.16.45 

(13 on Agenda) Discussion and Consideration of Approving Proposals from BHI Management 
Consulting for the Placement of an Interim General Manager and/or Recruiting a General Manager.  

MOTION: M/s Padian/Dommer.  Accept both Phase 1 and Phase 2. 

VOTE: Ayes: Dommer, Nagel, Padian, Stein - Noes: None – Abstain: Kosel 
Motion passed.  Audio Time Stamped: 2.46.30 

MEETING EXTENSION 

MOTION: M/s Nagel/Padian. To extend the meeting until 10:15 

VOTE: Ayes: Dommer, Nagel, Padian, Stein - Noes: Kosel 
Motion passed.  Audio Time Stamped: 2.47.25 

MOTION TO TABLE THE REMAINING AGENDA ITEM 

MOTION: M/s Nagel/Kosel. To table the remaining agenda item. 

VOTE: Ayes: Dommer, Kosel, Nagel, Padian, Stein - Noes: None 
Motion passed unanimously.  Audio Time Stamped: 3.04.54 

ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting was adjourned at 10:10 p.m. 



Draft Minutes of April 8, 2020 

Item 3.1

P a g e  3 | 3 

MINUTES PREPARED BY:  Sasha Amiri-Nair 

These minutes were approved at the regular Board Meeting of the Kensington Fire Protection District on June 
10, 2020.  

Attest:  
____________________________ 
Board Secretary  



Draft Minutes of April 15, 2020 

Item 3.1

P a g e  2 | 3 

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MINUTES 
Date of Meeting:  April 15, 2020  

Time of Meeting:  4 p.m.  

Place of Meeting:  Via Zoom Teleconference 

PRESENT: Directors Present: Don Dommer, Janice Kosel, Larry Nagel, Kevin Padian and Julie Stein  

CALL TO ORDER:  

President Stein called the meeting to order at 4:03 p.m. and called roll. 

1. Discussion and Consideration of Endorsing a Process to Secure an Interim General Manager,
Including the Possibility of Naming an Ad-Hoc Committee to Work with BHI Management 
Consulting.   

MOTION: M/s Nagel/Dommer: The Board appoints Directors Stein & Padian to form an Ad Hoc 
Committee to work with BHI Management Consulting to find the District a suitable candidate for 
Interim GM. 
VOTE: Ayes: Dommer, Kosel, Nagel, Padian Stein - Noes: None 
Motion passed unanimously.  Audio Time Stamped: 13.23 

ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting was adjourned at 4:24 p.m. 

MINUTES PREPARED BY:  Sasha Amiri-Nair 

These minutes were approved at the regular Board Meeting of the Kensington Fire Protection District on 
June 10, 2020. 

Attest: 

____________________________ 
Board Secretary  



Draft Minutes of May 1, 2020 

Item 3.1

P a g e  2 | 3 

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MINUTES 
Date of Meeting:  May 1, 2020  

Time of Meeting:  3 p.m.  

Place of Meeting:  Via Zoom Teleconference 

PRESENT: Directors Present: Janice Kosel, Larry Nagel, Kevin Padian and Julie Stein 
 Don Dommer attended @ 3:09 p.m. 

CALL TO ORDER:  

President Stein called the meeting to order at 3:08 p.m. and called roll. 

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION @ 3:11 p.m. 

RECONVENED TO OPEN SESSION @ 5:10 p.m. 

No report. 

6. Consideration of Approving a Consulting Service Contract for Financial and Budgetary Process
and Proceure Development. 

MOTION: M/s Padian/Dommer: Approve subject to the correction of the County in paragraph 20 
VOTE: Ayes: Dommer, Kosel, Nagel, Padian Stein - Noes: None 
Motion passed unanimously.  Audio Time Stamped: 1.30.14 

7. Consideration of Approving a Proposal for Migration of Email from Host Gator to Another
Professional Email Platform. 

MOTION: M/s Padian/Nagel: Accept the proposal of the contract with Nerd Crossing. 
VOTE: Ayes: Dommer, Kosel, Nagel, Padian Stein - Noes: None 
Motion passed unanimously.  Audio Time Stamped: 1.40.34 

8. Consideration of Approving the Supplemental Monthly Transmittal Report for April 2020

MOTION: M/s Kosel/Nagel: Approve the transmittal deleting the legal fees and RGS’s bill pending 
further documentation. 
VOTE: Ayes: None - Noes: Dommer, Nagel, Padian Stein - Absent: Kosel, 
Motion failed.  Audio Time Stamped: 1.44.19 

Director Kosel left the meeting @ 5:36 p.m. 



Draft Minutes of May 1, 2020 

Item 3.1

P a g e  2 | 3 

8. Consideration of Approving the Supplemental Monthly Transmittal Report for April 2020

MOTION: M/s Nagel/Padian: Approve the transmittal report excluding the RGS invoice until 
further review and the legal counsel invoice for April 22 but to pay the 2891 invoice dated 3/20. 
VOTE: Ayes: Dommer, Nagel, Padian Stein - Noes: None – Absent: Kosel 
Motion passed.  Audio Time Stamped: 1.51.30 

ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting was adjourned at 5:45 p.m. 

MINUTES PREPARED BY:  Sasha Amiri-Nair 

These minutes were approved at the regular Board Meeting of the Kensington Fire Protection District on 
June 10, 2020. 

Attest: 

____________________________ 
Board Secretary  



Item 3.2

EL CERRITO-KENSINGTON FIRE DEPARTMENT 
10900 San Pablo Avenue  El Cerrito  CA  94530 

(510) 215-4450  FAX (510) 232-4917  
www.el-cerrito.org 

June 3, 2020 

TO:   Kensington Fire Protection District Board Members 

FROM: Michael Pigoni: Fire Chief 

RE: Incident Activity Reports for the Month of May 2020 

There were 31 incidents that occurred during the month of April in the community of Kensington.  This is an 
increase of 9 calls over the previous month. Please see the attached “Incident Log” for the dates and times, 
locations, and incident type for these calls that the Fire Department responded to this past month. During this 
same time, Engine 65 responded to a total of 44 calls in all districts, an increase of 5 calls from last month.   

On May 12th, the Fire Department responded to a reported structure fire in the 200 block of Trinity Avenue. 
Upon arrival, crews were informed that the fire had occurred in the garage but was now out. Upon investigating 
it was discovered that one of the residents had emptied out an ash tray into a garbage can in the garage that also 
contained some dry leaves. The fire was contained to the trash can and a throw rug that it was sitting on. On 
May 25th, there was another reported structure fire in the 200 block of Cambridge Avenue. Upon arrival, the fire 
was located outside the structure in the back yard where the resident had lit their BBQ but had not taken of the 
grill cover all the way. When the cover caught fire, it also melted the propane hose to the burners. The fire had 
been extinguished by the home owner, but the gas was still leaking. Crews isolated the propane tank and insured 
there was no extension of the fire to the structure.  

The chart below is broken down into NFIRS incident types.  The following is a list of the response types, the 
number of responses for each type and the percentage of the total calls for each type for all the responses in the 
community of Kensington.  

Call Type 
Incident 
Count Percentages 

Fires (Structure, Trash, Vehicles, Vegetation Fires) 2 6.45% 

Explosions / Ruptures (Over Pressure/Ruptures, Explosions, Bombs 0 0.00% 

Medical  (EMS, Vehicle Accidents, Extrication Rescue) 19 61.29% 

Hazardous Condition (Chemical Spills, Leaks, Down Power Lines) 1 3.23% 

Service Calls (Distress, Water/Smoke/Odor Problems, Public Assists) 3 9.68% 

Good Intent Calls (Cancelled En Route, Wrong Location) 2 6.45% 

False Calls  (Wrong Company/Unit Dispatched) 4 12.90% 

Totals 31 100.00% 



Item 3.2

# Incident 
Number 

Date & Time Address City Apparatus ID
Incident 
Type*

1 0020044076 01-May-20 13:58:06 8  Highland BLVD Kensington E165 311
2 0020044175 01-May-20 19:42:15  Eureka AVE El Cerrito E165 444
3 0020044210 01-May-20 21:47:43  Spruce ST Kensington E165 321
4 0020044402 02-May-20 15:41:51 176  Ardmore RD Kensington E165 5000
5 0020044712 03-May-20 17:14:43 1190-119 E Wildcat Canyon RD Orinda E165 611
6 0020044733 03-May-20 18:31:52 426  Beloit AVE Kensington E165 321
7 0020045191 05-May-20 03:26:41 260  Yale AVE Kensington E165 321
8 0020045259 05-May-20 10:06:59  Colusa AVE El Cerrito E165 5000
9 0020045260 05-May-20 10:07:41 218  Cambridge AVE Kensington E165 321
10 0020045683 06-May-20 11:47:36 28  Kerr AVE Kensington E165 651
11 0020046816 09-May-20 19:25:09 90  Highland BLVD Kensington E165 321
12 0020046920 10-May-20 05:43:01 212  Willamette AVE Kensington E165 321
13 0020047313 11-May-20 10:47:29 1011  Contra Costa DR El Cerrito E165 251
14 0020047393 11-May-20 14:46:01 237  Los Altos DR Kensington E165 321
15 0020047435 11-May-20 16:08:46 350  Berkeley Park BLVD Kensington E165 321
16 0020047638 12-May-20 10:06:17 249  Trinity AVE Kensington E165 321
17 0020047724 12-May-20 14:48:03 262  Trinity AVE Kensington E165 111
18 0020049141 16-May-20 18:22:17 217  Arlington AVE Kensington E165 321
19 0020049155 16-May-20 19:25:49 1190-119 E Wildcat Canyon RD Berkeley E165 412
20 0020049554 18-May-20 04:38:34 308  Coventry RD Kensington E165 743
21 0020050085 19-May-20 23:56:36 39  Norwood AVE Kensington E165 554
22 0020050271 20-May-20 15:22:45 505  Village DR El Cerrito E165 412
23 0020050348 20-May-20 19:19:04 15  Windsor AVE Kensington E165 321
24 0020050989 22-May-20 15:52:56 557  Ashbury AVE El Cerrito E165 611F
25 0020050999 22-May-20 16:16:41 524  Seaview DR El Cerrito E165 321
26 0020051093 22-May-20 21:34:56 521  Village DR El Cerrito E165 500
27 0020051282 23-May-20 14:57:58 48  Highgate RD Kensington E165 321
28 0020051451 23-May-20 23:53:43 449  Ocean View AVE Kensington E165 444
29 0020051740 24-May-20 21:03:09 735  Pomona AVE El Cerrito E165 651
30 0020052056 25-May-20 17:42:53 243  Cambridge AVE Kensington E165 113

Kensington Fire Protection District 
Engine 65 Response Log for May 2020



31 0020052121 25-May-20 20:03:01  Central Park DR Berkeley E165 I6t1e1Mm 3.2
32 0020052202 26-May-20 03:56:08 231  Stanford AVE Kensington E165 554
33 0020052231 26-May-20 07:36:38 820  Kensington RD El Cerrito E165 321
34 0020052249 26-May-20 08:54:48 6  Norwood AVE Kensington E165 321
35 0020052549 27-May-20 00:23:53 256  Trinity AVE Kensington E165 740
36 0020052843 27-May-20 18:25:00 0-0 Lake Anza RD Orinda E165 611
37 0020053181 28-May-20 17:50:43 234  Stanford AVE Kensington E165 651
38 0020053404 29-May-20 10:18:47 90  Highland BLVD Kensington E165 740
39 0020053455 29-May-20 13:07:32 685  Wellesley AVE Kensington E165 321
40 0020053577 29-May-20 17:52:06 217  Arlington AVE Kensington E165 321
41 0020053639 29-May-20 21:55:30 90  Highland BLVD Kensington E165 740
42 0020053928 30-May-20 17:56:57 200  Arlington AVE Kensington E165 321
43 0020054003 31-May-20 00:31:18 123  Behrens ST El Cerrito E165 744
44 0020054137 31-May-20 12:09:57 1  Edgecroft RD Kensington E165 321

Type Series Description 
100 (Structure, Trash, Vehicle, Vegetation Fire)

200 (Over Pressure/Ruptures Explosions, Bombs)

300 (EMS, Vehicle Accidents, Extrication, Rescue)

400 (Chemical Spills, Leaks, Down power Lines)

500 (Distress, Water/ Smoke/Odor Problems, Public Assists)

600 (Cancelled En Route, Wrong Location)

700 (Wrong Company/Unit Dispatched)

* See Attached Table for Incident Type Explanations



Item 3.2

# Incident 
Number 

Date & Time Address City Apparatus ID
Incident 
Type*

1 0020044076 01-May-20 13:59:15 8  Highland BLVD Kensington E165 311
2 0020044210 01-May-20 21:49:36  Spruce ST Kensington E165 321
3 0020044402 02-May-20 15:41:51 176  Ardmore RD Kensington E165 5000
4 0020044733 03-May-20 18:33:41 426  Beloit AVE Kensington E165 321
5 0020044757 03-May-20 20:06:20 90  Highland BLVD Kensington E171 341
6 0020045191 05-May-20 03:27:48 260  Yale AVE Kensington E165 321
7 0020045260 05-May-20 10:09:22 218  Cambridge AVE Kensington E165 321
8 0020045683 06-May-20 11:50:34 28  Kerr AVE Kensington E165 651
9 0020046816 09-May-20 19:28:01 90  Highland BLVD Kensington E165 321
10 0020046920 10-May-20 05:44:28 212  Willamette AVE Kensington E165 321
11 0020047393 11-May-20 14:48:01 237  Los Altos DR Kensington E165 321
12 0020047435 11-May-20 16:11:00 350  Berkeley Park BLVD Kensington E165 321
13 0020047638 12-May-20 10:07:16 249  Trinity AVE Kensington E165 321
14 0020047724 12-May-20 14:50:42 262  Trinity AVE Kensington E165 111
15 0020049141 16-May-20 18:24:57 217  Arlington AVE Kensington E165 321
16 0020049554 18-May-20 04:39:42 308  Coventry RD Kensington E165 743
17 0020050085 19-May-20 23:57:25 39  Norwood AVE Kensington E165 554
18 0020050348 20-May-20 19:20:58 15  Windsor AVE Kensington E165 321
19 0020051282 23-May-20 14:58:44 48  Highgate RD Kensington E165 321
20 0020051451 23-May-20 23:54:08 449  Ocean View AVE Kensington E165 444
21 0020052056 25-May-20 17:43:53 243  Cambridge AVE Kensington E165 113
22 0020052202 26-May-20 03:56:48 231  Stanford AVE Kensington E165 554
23 0020052249 26-May-20 08:55:29 6  Norwood AVE Kensington E165 321
24 0020052549 27-May-20 00:24:51 256  Trinity AVE Kensington E165 740
25 0020053181 28-May-20 17:51:38 234  Stanford AVE Kensington E165 651
26 0020053404 29-May-20 10:19:15 90  Highland BLVD Kensington E165 740
27 0020053455 29-May-20 13:10:19 685  Wellesley AVE Kensington E165 321
28 0020053577 29-May-20 17:52:44 217  Arlington AVE Kensington E165 321
29 0020053639 29-May-20 21:56:23 90  Highland BLVD Kensington E165 740
30 0020053928 30-May-20 17:57:51 200  Arlington AVE Kensington E165 321

Kensington Fire Protection District 
 Response Log for May 2020



Item 3.231 0020054137 31-May-20 12:12:54 1  Edgecroft RD Kensington E165 321

Type Series Description 
100 (Structure, Trash, Vehicle, Vegetation Fire)

200 (Over Pressure/Ruptures Explosions, Bombs)

300 (EMS, Vehicle Accidents, Extrication, Rescue)

400 (Chemical Spills, Leaks, Down power Lines)

500 (Distress, Water/ Smoke/Odor Problems, Public Assists)

600 (Cancelled En Route, Wrong Location)

700 (Wrong Company/Unit Dispatched)

* See Attached Table for Incident Type Explanations



 06/03/20
 Accrual Basis

 Kensington Fire Protection District

 Balance Sheet
 As of April 30, 2020

Apr 30, 20

ASSETS

Current Assets

Checking/Savings

Petty Cash 200.00

KFPD Revolving Acct - Gen Fund 48,918.72

General Fund 891,973.67

Special Tax Fund 10,152.74

Capital Fund -6,512.96

Total Checking/Savings 944,732.17

Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable -7,766.29

Advance on Taxes 2,130,109.66

Advance on Supplemental Taxes 60,682.81

Total Accounts Receivable 2,183,026.18

Other Current Assets

E/C Salary Reimbursement Receiv 45,287.46

Deposits on Fixed Assets 220,000.00

Prepaid Services - EC 505,414.65

Prepaid CERBT - Retiree Trust 255,234.60

Investments

Capital Replacement Funds 3,534,173.00

Fire Protect. Contract Reserves 3,032,487.51

E/C Contract Recon Reserves 358,693.63

Investments - Other -581,339.06

Total Investments 6,344,015.08

Total Other Current Assets 7,369,951.79

Total Current Assets 10,497,710.14

Fixed Assets

Land 5,800.00

Equipment 1,456,273.95

Accumulated Depreciation-Equip -830,564.15

Building and Improvements 2,391,581.26

Accumulated Depreciation - Bldg -1,070,893.00

Current Capital Outlay

Firefighters Qtrs/Equip 105.00

Type III Engine 10,801.56

Total Current Capital Outlay 10,906.56

Total Fixed Assets 1,963,104.62

TOTAL ASSETS 12,460,814.76

LIABILITIES & EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Due to Revolving Acct - Gen Fnd 338.19

Due to Other - Issued by CCC 56,294.28

Total Accounts Payable 56,632.47

 Page 1 of 2

Item 3.3



 06/03/20
 Accrual Basis

 Kensington Fire Protection District

 Balance Sheet
 As of April 30, 2020

Apr 30, 20

Other Current Liabilities

Accrued Salary Reimb Income-EC 45,521.32

El Cerrito Service Contract Pay 505,414.58

Wages & PR Taxes Payable 7,785.46

Deferred Inflow of Resources 6,911.00

Total Other Current Liabilities 565,632.36

Total Current Liabilities 622,264.83

Long Term Liabilities

El Cerrito Reconcilation Liab. 254,921.13

CalPERS Settlement Payable 30,466.72

Total Long Term Liabilities 285,387.85

Total Liabilities 907,652.68

Equity

Fund Equity - General 3,889,496.00

Fund Equity - Capital Projects 3,213,698.00

Fund Equity - Special Revenue 109,075.00

Fund Equity - Gen Fixed Asset 2,212,892.01

Fund Equity 774,640.58

Net Income 1,353,360.49

Total Equity 11,553,162.08

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 12,460,814.76

 Page 2 of 2

Item 3.3



 Kensington Fire Protection District

 Revenue & Expense Budget vs. Actual
 July 2019 through April 2020

Kensington Fire Protection District

Approved Budget Jul '19 - Apr 20 Jul '18 - Apr 19 $ Over Budget % of Budget

Ordinary Income/Expense

Income

Property Taxes 4,263,164.00 4,263,163.76 4,042,029.49 -0.24 100.0%

Special Taxes 200,450.00 200,652.50 200,453.30 202.50 100.1%

Other Tax Income 25,250.00 12,508.33 12,495.48 -12,741.67 49.54%

Lease Agreement 36,603.00 30,502.50 29,935.02 -6,100.50 83.33%

Interest Income 120,000.00 51,394.32 98,742.81 -68,605.68 42.83%

Salary Reimbursement Agreement 34,000.00 22,760.68 52,933.84 -11,239.32 66.94%

Salary Reimb Agreement Recon(s) 400.00 333.30 0.00 -66.70 83.33%

Grant Revenue 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Miscellaneous Income 0.00 1,610.24 4,314.08 1,610.24 100.0%

Total Income 4,679,867.00 4,582,925.63 4,440,904.02 -96,941.37 97.93%

Expense

Staff

Wages 33,278.00 33,278.00 79,233.40 0.00 100.0%

Longevity Pay 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 0.00 100.0%

Overtime Wages 5,327.00 5,327.47 1,851.24 0.47 100.01%

Vacation Wages 15,714.00 15,713.82 0.00 -0.18 100.0%

Medical/dental ins compensation 3,920.00 3,920.00 8,380.00 0.00 100.0%

Retirement Contribution 2,529.00 2,621.96 6,021.60 92.96 103.68%

Payroll Taxes 4,202.00 4,201.71 7,074.55 -0.29 99.99%

Workers Compensation/Life Ins 1,498.00 1,497.52 1,842.06 -0.48 99.97%

Payroll Processing 617.00 871.49 1,381.15 254.49 141.25%

Total Staff 68,085.00 68,431.97 106,784.00 346.97 100.51%

RETIREE MEDICAL BENEFITS

PERS Medical 0.00 24,113.12 0.00 24,113.12 100.0%

Delta Dental 0.00 2,846.37 0.00 2,846.37 100.0%

Vision Care 0.00 2,584.80 0.00 2,584.80 100.0%

CalPERS Settlement 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total RETIREE MEDICAL BENEFITS 0.00 29,544.29 0.00 29,544.29 100.0%

OUTSIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Accounting 4,000.00 5,903.80 3,682.75 1,903.80 147.6%

Actuarial Valuation 2,900.00 2,900.00 0.00 0.00 100.0%

Audit 16,000.00 16,000.00 16,000.00 0.00 100.0%

Bank Fee 0.00 25.00 0.00 25.00 100.0%

Contra Costa County Expenses 37,630.00 2,982.16 35,741.98 -34,647.84 7.93%

El Cerrito Contract Fee 3,194,000.00 2,527,880.90 2,565,774.65 -666,119.10 79.15%

El Cerrito Reconciliation(s) 137,000.00 114,166.70 0.00 -22,833.30 83.33%

IT Services and Equipment 15,100.00 107.40 0.00 -14,992.60 0.71%

Fire Abatement Contract 11,250.00 0.00 665.00 -11,250.00 0.0%

Fire Engineer Plan Review 2,000.00 1,234.16 403.50 -765.84 61.71%

RGS Contract 226,000.00 177,205.54 0.00 -48,794.46 78.41%

Grant Writer/Coordinator 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Risk Management Insurance 14,000.00 13,385.00 12,507.00 -615.00 95.61%

LAFCO Fees 2,550.00 2,548.19 2,278.47 -1.81 99.93%

Legal Fees 53,600.00 40,180.86 57,456.65 -13,419.14 74.96%

Polygon Study 10,000.00 5,000.00 0.00 -5,000.00 50.0%

RFP Consultant 15,000.00 15,045.84 0.00 45.84 100.31%

Traffic Study 20,000.00 13,890.00 0.00 -6,110.00 69.45%

Professional Fees 0.00 2,260.00 0.00 2,260.00 100.0%

 Page 1 of 3

Item 3.3



 Kensington Fire Protection District

 Revenue & Expense Budget vs. Actual
 July 2019 through April 2020

Approved Budget Jul '19 - Apr 20 Jul '18 - Apr 19 $ Over Budget % of Budget

Water System Improvements 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 -20,000.00 0.0%

Website Development/Maintenance 2,520.00 1,151.74 2,000.00 -1,368.26 45.7%

Wildland Vegetation Mgmt 12,600.00 6,300.00 2,500.00 -6,300.00 50.0%

OUTSIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES - Other 0.00 10,432.50 0.00 10,432.50 100.0%

Total OUTSIDE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 3,796,150.00 2,958,599.79 2,699,010.00 -837,550.21 77.94%

COMMUNITY SERVICE ACTIVITIES

Public Education 27,000.00 10,730.13 8,845.00 -16,269.87 39.74%

Comm. Pharmaceutical Drop-Off 2,500.00 0.00 371.40 -2,500.00 0.0%

Vial  of Life Program 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Vial of Life Program 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

CERT Emerg Kits/Sheds/Prepared 3,500.00 0.00 0.00 -3,500.00 0.0%

Open Houses 1,800.00 1,125.25 261.28 -674.75 62.51%

Community Shredder 3,200.00 1,619.38 2,295.00 -1,580.62 50.61%

DFSC Matching Grants 24,000.00 0.00 23,880.00 -24,000.00 0.0%

Firesafe Planting Grants 3,000.00 0.00 0.00 -3,000.00 0.0%

Demonstration Garden 0.00 0.00 6,147.11 0.00 0.0%

Community Sandbags 1,500.00 0.00 1,993.81 -1,500.00 0.0%

Volunteer Appreciation 1,500.00 0.00 0.00 -1,500.00 0.0%

Community Center Contribution 35,000.00 0.00 0.00 -35,000.00 0.0%

Total COMMUNITY SERVICE ACTIVITIES 103,000.00 13,474.76 43,793.60 -89,525.24 13.08%

DISTRICT ACTIVITIES

Professional Development 7,500.00 3,879.05 3,262.85 -3,620.95 51.72%

Office

Office Expense 2,900.00 1,033.79 2,680.49 -1,866.21 35.65%

Office Supplies 2,800.00 1,512.62 2,058.83 -1,287.38 54.02%

Telephone 8,000.00 8,813.61 4,841.10 813.61 110.17%

Office- Other 100.00 578.19 0.00 478.19 578.19%

Office - Other 0.00 80.00 0.00 80.00 100.0%

Total Office 13,800.00 12,018.21 9,580.42 -1,781.79 87.09%

Election 0.00 0.00 3,855.77 0.00 0.0%

Firefighter's Apparel & PPE 750.00 0.00 -336.74 -750.00 0.0%

Firefighters' Expenses 5,000.00 59,099.96 1,192.00 54,099.96 1,182.0%

Staff Appreciation 1,750.00 1,017.12 1,275.32 -732.88 58.12%

Memberships 11,000.00 8,727.00 7,390.00 -2,273.00 79.34%

Building Maintenance

Needs Assess/Feasibility Study 115,000.00 41,246.41 0.00 -73,753.59 35.87%

Gardening service 2,000.00 650.00 600.00 -1,350.00 32.5%

Building alarm 800.00 1,615.81 1,264.44 815.81 201.98%

Medical Waste Disposal 8,000.00 4,758.50 3,723.40 -3,241.50 59.48%

Janitorial Service 1,500.00 1,155.00 1,050.00 -345.00 77.0%

Miscellaneous Maint. 17,000.00 15,674.25 6,081.25 -1,325.75 92.2%

Total Building Maintenance 144,300.00 65,099.97 12,719.09 -79,200.03 45.11%

Building Utilities/Service

Gas and Electric 10,600.00 6,391.88 5,842.13 -4,208.12 60.3%

Water/Sewer 2,400.00 1,513.64 1,558.52 -886.36 63.07%

Total Building Utilities/Service 13,000.00 7,905.52 7,400.65 -5,094.48 60.81%

Total DISTRICT ACTIVITIES 197,100.00 157,746.83 46,339.36 -39,353.17 80.03%

Contingency

General 0.00 1,767.50 0.00 1,767.50 100.0%

Contingency - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total Contingency 0.00 1,767.50 0.00 1,767.50 100.0%

Total Expense 4,164,335.00 3,231,332.64 2,895,926.96 -933,002.36 77.6%

 Page 2 of 3

Item 3.3



 Kensington Fire Protection District

 Revenue & Expense Budget vs. Actual
 July 2019 through April 2020

Approved Budget Jul '19 - Apr 20 Jul '18 - Apr 19 $ Over Budget % of Budget

Net Ordinary Income 515,532.00 1,351,592.99 1,544,977.06 836,060.99 262.17%

Other Income/Expense

Other Income

Transfers In - Capital 0.00 -2,621.54 567,874.00 -2,621.54 100.0%

Transfers In - General 0.00 23,510.99 556,423.66 23,510.99 100.0%

Total Other Income 0.00 20,889.45 1,124,297.66 20,889.45 100.0%

Other Expense

Depreciation Expense 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers Out - Capital 0.00 23,510.99 261,423.66 23,510.99 100.0%

Transfers Out - Special 0.00 0.00 295,000.00 0.00 0.0%

Transfers Out - General 0.00 -2,621.54 567,874.00 -2,621.54 100.0%

<Gain>/Loss on Asset Disposal 0.00 0.00 191.00 0.00 0.0%

Total Other Expense 0.00 20,889.45 1,124,488.66 20,889.45 100.0%

Net Other Income 0.00 0.00 -191.00 0.00 0.0%

Net Income 515,532.00 1,351,592.99 1,544,786.06 836,060.99 262.17%

Command Vehicle Replacement Fund 75,880

Engine Replacement Fund 450,000

Public Safety Building Fund 525,880

Designated Funds 

Command Vehicle Replacement Fund 0

Engine Replacement Fund 75,880

Public Safety Building Fund 450,000

Total Designated Funds 525,880

Beginning Cash 9,321,224

Revenue 4,679,867

Operating Expenditures 4,164,335

Capital Expenditures -452,000

Accrual to Cash Adjustment

ENDING CASH 9,384,756

Cumulative Designated Funds 

Capital Replacement Funds -4,280,053

Prepaid CERBT - Retiree Trust -1,010,137

El Cerrito Contract 12 month set aside -3,169,488

AVAILABLE CASH 925,078

 Page 3 of 3

Item 3.3



TO: Auditor Controller of Contra Costa County:
        Forwarded herewith are the following invoices and claims for goods and services received which have been approved for payment:

TRANSMITTAL - APPROVAL

KENSINGTON FPD PY/CY:
TRANSMITTAL  - APPROVAL BATCH #.:

Invoices DATE : 6/10/2020
LOCATION #: 13

FILENAME: KENSINGTON

VEND 
# VENDOR NAME

INVOICE 
DATE DESCRIPTION

FUND 
/ORG

SUB-
ACCT TASK OPT.

ACTIVITY 
/WORK 
AUTH.

ENCUMB 
(P.O.) / 

Invoice # P/C

PAYMENT 
AMOUNT

50131 Meyers Nave 5/11/2020 Legal counsel April 2020 less credit of $2891.16 7840 2490 2020040047 $9,776.16
50151 City of El Cerrito 6/1/2020 June fire protection 7840 2328 $263,084.54

BHI Management Consulting 5/28/2020 Recruitment of part-time Permanent General Mana7840 2490 020-16 $6,000.00
Mary Morris-Mayorga 5/18/2020 Financial consulting services 5/2020 7840 2490 201 $2,767.50
AT&T 4/5/2020 Phone service 4/5-5/4/20 & prior balance 7840 2490 $1,247.43
East Bay Municipal Utility District 4/9/2020 Water service 2/3-4/2/20 7840 2490 $430.78
Office Depot 4/3/2020 Prior balance, late fee & finance charge 7840 2490 $135.93
Olivero Plumbing Co 4/28/2020 Plumbing services in kitchen 7840 2490 36973 $175.00
PG&E 4/10/2020 Electric charges 3/6-4/5/20 7840 2490 $923.90
PG&E 4/5/2020 Gas charges 3/6-4/3/20 7840 2490 $318.04
Comcast 4/22/2020 Internet service 4/26-5/25/20 7840 2490 $144.87

50293 Digital Deployment 5/22/2020 Streamline Monthly Member fee 7840 2490 105169 $200.00
Creative Signs 5/28/2020 Decals & striping for Battalion Chief Command Ve 7840 2490 10896 $794.25

0001 Julie Stein 5/13/2020 Copy Central - Board Meeting Packets 5/13/20 7840 2490 $44.97

TOTAL $286,043.37

Kensington FPD Approval

1

Kensington FPD Approval
________________________Date: ___/___/___
________________________Date: ___/___/___

Item 3.4



Item 3.5
RESOLUTION 20-05 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE KENSINGTON FIRE 
PROTECTION DISTRICT ESTABLISHING THE APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT OF THE 
KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021 

WHEREAS, Article XIIIB of the California Constitution establishes a limitation on 
spending by local government agencies, including special districts not otherwise 
exempted, of funds from proceeds of taxes; and 

WHEREAS, each local government agency, including non-exempted special 
districts, must establish its appropriations limit annually by recorded vote of the governing 
body; and 

WHEREAS, the appropriations limit for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 was established at 
$4,660,000 by the Board of Directors of the Kensington Fire Protection District; and 

WHEREAS, the applicable factors used to calculate the appropriations limit for 
Fiscal Year 2020-2021 are (1) the increase in the California per capita personal income 
of 3.73% as provided by the State Department of Finance; and (2) the applicable change 
in population from January 2019 to January 2020 of 0.26% (as shown below); and 

WHEREAS, the information used in the determination of the calculation of the 
appropriations limit has been available for public inspection for at least 15 days; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors of the 
Kensington Fire Protection District establishes the appropriations limit for Fiscal Year 
2020-2021 as $4,846,386. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * *

The foregoing resolution was duly adopted at a regular meeting of the Kensington 
Fire Protection District on the 10th day of June 2020 by the following vote of the Board. 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

____________________ 
Julie Stein, President 

_____________________ 
Larry Nagel, Secretary 

Attachment:  California Department of Finance Appropriations Limit Letter FY 2020-2021 

Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Limit 4,660,000$   
Per Capita Personal Income Ratio 1.0373
Population % Change Ratio 1.0026
Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Limit 4,846,386$   



0D\������

'HDU�)LVFDO�2IILFHU�

6XEMHFW�� 3ULFH�)DFWRU�DQG�3RSXODWLRQ�,QIRUPDWLRQ

$SSURSULDWLRQV�/LPLW
&DOLIRUQLD�5HYHQXH�DQG�7D[DWLRQ�&RGH�VHFWLRQ������UHTXLUHV�WKH�'HSDUWPHQW�RI�)LQDQFH WR�
WUDQVPLW�DQ�HVWLPDWH�RI�WKH�SHUFHQWDJH�FKDQJH�LQ�SRSXODWLRQ�WR�ORFDO�JRYHUQPHQWV��(DFK�ORFDO�
MXULVGLFWLRQ�PXVW�XVH�WKHLU�SHUFHQWDJH�FKDQJH�LQ�SRSXODWLRQ�IDFWRU�IRU�-DQXDU\����������LQ�
FRQMXQFWLRQ�ZLWK�D�FKDQJH�LQ�WKH�FRVW�RI�OLYLQJ��RU SULFH�IDFWRU��WR�FDOFXODWH�WKHLU�DSSURSULDWLRQV�
OLPLW�IRU�ILVFDO�\HDU����������$WWDFKPHQW�$�SURYLGHV�WKH�FKDQJH�LQ�&DOLIRUQLD·V�SHU�FDSLWD�SHUVRQDO�
LQFRPH�DQG�DQ�H[DPSOH�IRU�XWLOL]LQJ�WKH�SULFH�IDFWRU�DQG�SRSXODWLRQ�SHUFHQWDJH�FKDQJH�IDFWRU�
WR�FDOFXODWH�WKH���������DSSURSULDWLRQV�OLPLW��$WWDFKPHQW�%�SURYLGHV�WKH�FLW\�DQG�XQLQFRUSRUDWHG�
FRXQW\�SRSXODWLRQ�SHUFHQWDJH�FKDQJH� $WWDFKPHQW�&�SURYLGHV�WKH�SRSXODWLRQ�SHUFHQWDJH�
FKDQJH�IRU�FRXQWLHV�DQG�WKHLU�VXPPHG�LQFRUSRUDWHG�DUHDV��7KH�SRSXODWLRQ�SHUFHQWDJH�FKDQJH�
GDWD�H[FOXGHV�IHGHUDO�DQG�VWDWH�LQVWLWXWLRQDOL]HG�SRSXODWLRQV�DQG�PLOLWDU\�SRSXODWLRQV�

3RSXODWLRQ�3HUFHQW�&KDQJH�IRU�6SHFLDO�'LVWULFWV
6RPH�VSHFLDO�GLVWULFWV�PXVW�HVWDEOLVK�DQ�DQQXDO�DSSURSULDWLRQV�OLPLW��&DOLIRUQLD 5HYHQXH�DQG�
7D[DWLRQ�&RGH�VHFWLRQ������SURYLGHV�DGGLWLRQDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�UHJDUGLQJ�WKH�DSSURSULDWLRQV�OLPLW��
$UWLFOH�;,,,�%��VHFWLRQ���&��RI�WKH�&DOLIRUQLD &RQVWLWXWLRQ�H[HPSWV�FHUWDLQ�VSHFLDO�GLVWULFWV�IURP�WKH�
DSSURSULDWLRQV�OLPLW�FDOFXODWLRQ�PDQGDWH� 7KH FRGH�VHFWLRQ DQG�WKH�&DOLIRUQLD�&RQVWLWXWLRQ�FDQ�
EH�DFFHVVHG�DW WKH�IROORZLQJ�ZHEVLWH��KWWS���OHJLQIR�OHJLVODWXUH�FD�JRY�IDFHV�FRGHV�[KWPO���

6SHFLDO�GLVWULFWV�UHTXLUHG�E\�ODZ�WR�FDOFXODWH�WKHLU�DSSURSULDWLRQV�OLPLW�PXVW�SUHVHQW�WKH�FDOFXODWLRQ�
DV�SDUW�RI�WKHLU�DQQXDO�DXGLW��$Q\�TXHVWLRQV�VSHFLDO�GLVWULFWV�KDYH�RQ�WKLV�UHTXLUHPHQW VKRXOG�EH�
GLUHFWHG�WR�WKHLU FRXQW\��GLVWULFW�OHJDO�FRXQVHO��RU WKH�ODZ�LWVHOI��1R�VWDWH�DJHQF\�UHYLHZV�WKH�ORFDO�
DSSURSULDWLRQV�OLPLWV�

3RSXODWLRQ�&HUWLILFDWLRQ
7KH�SRSXODWLRQ�FHUWLILFDWLRQ�SURJUDP�DSSOLHV�RQO\�WR�FLWLHV�DQG�FRXQWLHV��&DOLIRUQLD�5HYHQXH�DQG�
7D[DWLRQ�&RGH�VHFWLRQ���������PDQGDWHV�)LQDQFH�WR�DXWRPDWLFDOO\�FHUWLI\�DQ\�SRSXODWLRQ�
HVWLPDWH�WKDW�H[FHHGV�WKH�FXUUHQW�FHUWLILHG�SRSXODWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�6WDWH�&RQWUROOHU·V�2IILFH��)LQDQFH�
ZLOO�FHUWLI\�WKH�KLJKHU�HVWLPDWH�WR�WKH�6WDWH�&RQWUROOHU�E\�-XQH����������

3OHDVH�1RWH���7KH�SULRU�\HDU·V�FLW\�SRSXODWLRQ�HVWLPDWHV�PD\�EH�UHYLVHG� 7KH�SHU�FDSLWD�SHUVRQDO�
LQFRPH�FKDQJH�LV�EDVHG�RQ�KLVWRULFDO�GDWD��*LYHQ�WKH�VWD\�DW�KRPH�RUGHUV�GXH�WR�&29,'�����
JURZWK�LQ�WKH�FRPLQJ�\HDUV�PD\�EH�VXEVWDQWLDOO\�ORZHU�WKDQ�UHFHQW�WUHQGV��

,I�\RX�KDYH�DQ\�TXHVWLRQV�UHJDUGLQJ�WKLV�GDWD��SOHDVH�FRQWDFW�WKH�'HPRJUDSKLF�5HVHDUFK�8QLW�DW
����������������

�V��.HHO\�0DUWLQ�%RVOHU

.((/< 0$57,1 %26/(5
'LUHFWRU

$WWDFKPHQW

Item 3.5



0D\������
$WWDFKPHQW�$�

$�� 3ULFH�)DFWRU�� $UWLFOH�;,,,�%�VSHFLILHV�WKDW�ORFDO�MXULVGLFWLRQV�VHOHFW�WKHLU�FRVW�RI�OLYLQJ�
IDFWRU�WR�FRPSXWH�WKHLU�DSSURSULDWLRQ�OLPLW�E\�D�YRWH�RI�WKHLU�JRYHUQLQJ�ERG\��7KH�
FRVW�RI�OLYLQJ�IDFWRU�SURYLGHG�KHUH�LV�SHU�FDSLWD�SHUVRQDO�LQFRPH�� ,I�WKH�SHUFHQWDJH�
FKDQJH�LQ�SHU�FDSLWD�SHUVRQDO�LQFRPH�LV�VHOHFWHG��WKH�SHUFHQWDJH�FKDQJH�WR�EH�
XVHG�LQ�VHWWLQJ�WKH�ILVFDO�\HDU���������DSSURSULDWLRQ�OLPLW�LV��

3HU�&DSLWD�3HUVRQDO�,QFRPH�

)LVFDO�<HDU� 3HUFHQWDJH�FKDQJH�
�)<�� RYHU�SULRU�\HDU�

�������� �����

%�� )ROORZLQJ�LV�DQ�H[DPSOH�XVLQJ�VDPSOH�SRSXODWLRQ�FKDQJH�DQG�WKH�FKDQJH�LQ�
&DOLIRUQLD�SHU�FDSLWD�SHUVRQDO�LQFRPH�DV�JURZWK�IDFWRUV�LQ�FRPSXWLQJ�D���������
DSSURSULDWLRQ�OLPLW��

���������

3HU�&DSLWD�&RVW�RI�/LYLQJ�&KDQJH� ������SHUFHQW�
3RSXODWLRQ�&KDQJH� ������SHUFHQW�

3HU�&DSLWD�&RVW�RI�/LYLQJ�FRQYHUWHG�WR�D�UDWLR�� �����������  ��������
����

3RSXODWLRQ�FRQYHUWHG�WR�D�UDWLR�� �����������  ��������
����

&DOFXODWLRQ�RI�IDFWRU�IRU�)<���������� �������[�������� ��������

Item 3.5



)LVFDO�<HDU���������

$WWDFKPHQW�%�
$QQXDO�3HUFHQW�&KDQJH�LQ�3RSXODWLRQ�0LQXV�([FOXVLRQV�

-DQXDU\���������WR�-DQXDU\���������DQG�7RWDO�3RSXODWLRQ��-DQXDU\���������

7RWDO�
3RSXODWLRQ�&RXQW\� 3HUFHQW�&KDQJH� ��� 3RSXODWLRQ�0LQXV�([FOXVLRQV ����

&LW\� ���������� ������� ������� ���������

&RQWUD�&RVWD�

$QWLRFK� ����� �������� �������� ��������

%UHQWZRRG� ����� ������� ������� �������

&OD\WRQ� ������ ������� ������� �������

&RQFRUG� ������ �������� �������� ��������

'DQYLOOH� ������ ������� ������� �������

(O�&HUULWR� ����� ������� ������� �������

+HUFXOHV� ����� ������� ������� �������

/DID\HWWH� ������ ������� ������� �������

0DUWLQH]�� ������ ������� ������� �������

0RUDJD� ����� ������� ������� �������

2DNOH\� ����� ������� ������� �������

2ULQGD� ����� ������� ������� �������

3LQROH� ������ ������� ������� �������

3LWWVEXUJ� ����� ������� ������� �������

3OHDVDQW�+LOO� ������ ������� ������� �������

5LFKPRQG� ����� �������� �������� ��������

6DQ�3DEOR� ������ ������� ������� �������

6DQ�5DPRQ� ����� ������� ������� �������

:DOQXW�&UHHN� ������ ������� ������� �������

8QLQFRUSRUDWHG� ����� �������� �������� ��������

&RXQW\�7RWDO� ����� ���������� ���������� ����������

([FOXVLRQV�LQFOXGH�UHVLGHQWV�RQ�IHGHUDO�PLOLWDU\�LQVWDOODWLRQV�DQG�JURXS�TXDUWHUV�UHVLGHQWV�LQ�VWDWH�PHQWDO�
LQVWLWXWLRQV��VWDWH�DQG�IHGHUDO�FRUUHFWLRQDO�LQVWLWXWLRQV�DQG�YHWHUDQ�KRPHV��

Item 3.5



Item 3.6 

TO: Board of Directors 
Kensington Fire Protection District 

DATE: June 10,2020 

RE: AUTHORIZE CONTRA COSTA COUNTY TO PLACE SPECIAL TAX ON 
TAX ROLL AND COLLECT ON BEHALF OF KFPD 

SUBMITTED BY: Mary A. Morris-Mayorga, Interim General Manager 

Recommended Action 

Adopt Resolution 20-05 authorizing Contra Costa County to place the Kensington Fire 
Protection District’s special tax on the tax roll for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 and to 
collect the special tax on behalf of the Kensington Fire Protection District. 
development.     

Background 

The District assesses a voter-approved special tax of $83 to support fire protection 
services within the Kensington Community.  In order to place this special tax on the 
County tax roll and collect these funds, the District is required to submit a resolution 
to the County. 

Fiscal Impact 
The special tax totaling approximately $200,000 will be included in the Fiscal Year 
2020-2021 Budget. 



Item 3.6

RESOLUTION 20-06 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE KENSINGTON FIRE 
PROTECTION DISTRICT AUTHORIZING CONTRA COSTA COUNTY TO PLACE 
THE SPECIAL TAX ON THE TAX ROLL FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021 AND TO 

COLLECT THE SPECIAL TAX ON BEHALF OF THE KENSINGTON FIRE 
PROTECTION DISTRICT 

WHEREAS, the Kensington Fire Protection District is a special district organized 
under the laws of the State of California and includes within its jurisdiction all properties 
in the unincorporated portion of the community of Kensington; and  

WHEREAS, the Kensington Fire Protection District has enacted by voter approval 
a special tax to support fire protection services within the community of Kensington; and 

WHEREAS, as authorized by State law, Contra Costa County has historically 
collected the special tax for the Kensington Fire Protection District through the tax roll; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors hereby 
authorizes Contra Costa County to place the Kensington Fire Protection District’s special 
tax on the tax roll for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 and to collect the special tax on behalf of the 
Kensington Fire Protection District. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * *

The foregoing resolution was duly adopted at a regular meeting of the Kensington 
Fire Protection District on the 10th day of June 2020 by the following vote of the Board. 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

_______________________ 
Julie Stein, President 

_______________________ 
Larry Nagel, Secretary 



EL CERRITO-KENSINGTON FIRE DEPARTMENT 
10900 San Pablo Avenue  El Cerrito  CA  94530 

(510) 215-4450  FAX (510) 232-4917  
www.el-cerrito.org 

DATE: May 20, 2020 

TO: Kensington Fire Protection Finance Committee Members 

FROM: Michael Pigoni: Fire Chief   

RE: Fiscal Year 2020-21 Fee Schedule 

To Members of the Finance Committee, 

Attached please find the Kensington Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Year 2020/21. Included in this file is the 
worksheets for “Prior Year Reconciliation”, “Prior Year Reconciliation Summary” and the Budget FY20-21 
which is the proposed fee schedule for this next year that will begin July 1, 2020. As a point of clarification, the 
term “Prior Year” refers to Fiscal Year 2018-19 (FY-19). In May of 2018, the proposed fee schedule for 
FY2018-19 was $3,016,868 which included $215,158 budget to actual reconciliation for FY2016-17.  

In review of FY-19, the Overtime Pay account was budgeted at $700,000.00 which was very conservative 
considering that the Fire Department has been running with 3 vacancies for many years and backfilling with 
overtime. The overtime average has been steady at just over $1 million annually for the past 5 years. This has 
been justified due to the high pension costs and even higher unfunded accrued liability (UAL) costs to recruit 
and hire the additional firefighters.  

This same year, three personnel retired including the Fire Chief, a Battalion Chief, and an Engineer. None of 
these retirements were budgeted and the vacancies were backfilled with additional overtime while the Fire 
Department recruited and hired replacements. In addition, the Fire Department had three personnel off on 
Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) for an extended amount of time as well as an extended Worker’s Comp 
injury. All these vacancies added up to an additional overtime costs of approximately $505,000. Additionally, 
there were the “One Time Payouts” for vacation and sick leave buyout that amounted to approximately 
$122,000 that was not budgeted.  

Related costs to these retirements are also seen in “Miscellaneous Professional Services” to hold promotional 
tests for Engineer, Captain and Battalion Chief as well as background checks, psychological assessments, and 
medical evaluations for the new recruits. Also, there were the costs to purchase and provided the personal 
protective equipment for the new hires that is seen in the Clothing and Uniform account. This includes their 
structural turnout gear, wildland gear, boots, helmets, and gloves.  

During this same time, we experienced some major repairs on all the apparatus, potentially due a bad fuel load 
which required a new fuel injection pump and injectors as well as a head gasket on Engine 165, a new 
turbocharger on Engine 172 and a fuel injection pump and injectors on Engine 171. Also, our dispatch fee with 
Contra Costa County Regional Fire Communication Center (Con Fire) was increased over $25,000 over what 
was budgeted to upgrade their CAD and Enhanced 911 systems.  

These listed items along with some smaller budget to actual true ups adds up to a total reconciliation for FY-19 
of $289,193.75 which would have made the total fee for FY-19 $3,306,061.91. 

Item 4.1



FY 2018-19 FY 2018-19 Difference Percentage Reconciliation
Budgeted Actual

5100 SALARIES & BENEFITS
51110 Salaries $5,081,717.00 $4,899,247.21 $182,469.79 27.75% $50,635.37
51120 Temporary/Part-time Salaries $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 27.75% $416.25
51130 Temporary/Part-time Salaries $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 27.75%
51140 Overtime Pay $700,000.00 $1,205,676.98 ($505,676.98) 27.75% ($140,325.36)
51145 FLSA Overtime pay $95,000.00 $94,201.83 $798.17 27.75% $221.49
51146 Non Suppression Overtime pay $84,000.00 $73,633.37 $10,366.63 27.75% $2,876.74
51150 Special Pay $0.00 27.75% $0.00
51155 One-Time Payout $122,472.36 ($122,472.36) 27.75% ($33,986.08)
51210 PERS Constributions $2,235,778.00 $2,202,928.89 $32,849.11 27.75% $9,115.63
51200 PARS Constributions $0.00 27.75% $0.00
51220 FICA/MEDICARE $76,005.00 $86,253.95 ($10,248.95) 27.75% ($2,844.08)
51230 Insurance and Benefits $784,051.00 $727,497.71 $56,553.29 27.75% $15,693.54
51235 Life & LTD Insurance $40,942.00 $45,915.10 ($4,973.10) 27.75% ($1,380.04)
51237 Allowances & Other Benefits $160,025.00 $140,625.00 $19,400.00 27.75% $5,383.50
51240 Workers Compensation $199,338.00 $197,397.38 $1,940.62 27.75% $538.52
51242 Workers Compensation Pay (In Lieu of Salary) $7,382.79 ($7,382.79) 27.75% ($2,048.72)
51990 Salary Savings ($634,104.00) $0.00 ($634,104.00) 27.75% ($175,963.86)

TOTAL $8,824,252.00 $9,803,232.57 ($978,980.57) ($271,667.11)

5200 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
52190 Misc Professional Services $25,000.00 $43,185.65 ($18,185.65) 33.33% ($6,061.28)
52220 Medical Services $15,000.00 $13,754.62 $1,245.38 33.33% $415.09
52230 Other Technical Services $3,500.00 $2,862.24 $637.76 33.33% $212.57

TOTAL $43,500.00 $59,802.51 ($16,302.51) ($5,433.63)

5300 PROPERTY SERVICES
53110 Utilities $16,000.00 $15,102.77 $897.23 0.00% $0.00
53230 Building Maintenance Services $18,000.00 $22,732.73 ($4,732.73) 33.33% ($1,577.42)
53240 Landscape/Park Maint Svcs $30,000.00 $44,812.46 ($14,812.46) 0.00% $0.00
53250 Vehicle/Equip Maint Svcs $90,000.00 $129,993.41 ($39,993.41) 25.00% ($9,998.35)
53290 Misc R&M Svcs $194,000.00 $224,749.11 ($30,749.11) 33.33% ($10,248.68)
53320 Vehicle & Equip Lease $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00
53330 Vehicle Replcmt Rental Charge $162,000.00 $77,083.70 $84,916.30 18.83% $15,989.74
53910 Solid Waste Services $8,000.00 $9,470.92 ($1,470.92) 33.33% ($490.26)
53990 Other Property Services $726.50 ($726.50) 33.33% ($242.14)

TOTAL $518,000.00 $524,671.60 ($6,671.60) ($6,567.11)

5400 OTHER SERVICES
54210 Telephone Expenses $17,000.00 $14,300.86 $2,699.14 20.00% $539.83
54220 Mobile/wireless Expenses $17,000.00 $14,373.08 $2,626.92 20.00% $525.38
54310 Legal Notices & Advertisements $3,000.00 $156.64 $2,843.36 25.00% $710.84
54410 Printing and Binding $6,000.00 $3,263.11 $2,736.89 25.00% $684.22
54610 Travel & Training $35,000.00 $34,997.00 $3.00 25.00% $0.75
54910 Dues & Subscriptions $14,000.00 $14,186.90 ($186.90) 25.00% ($46.72)
54990 Other Administrative Services $20,000.00 $21,438.26 ($1,438.26) 25.00% ($359.57)

TOTAL $112,000.00 $102,715.85 $9,284.15 $2,054.73

5500 SUPPLIES
55110 General Office Supplies $6,000.00 $5,214.87 $785.13 25.00% $196.28
55120 Postage & Delivery $1,000.00 $1,632.65 ($632.65) 25.00% ($158.16)
55130 Photocopying Charges $3,000.00 $146.56 $2,853.44 25.00% $713.36
55210 Fuel $30,000.00 $39,004.79 ($9,004.79) 27.00% ($2,431.29)
55230 Medical Supplies $23,000.00 $27,334.07 ($4,334.07) 30.00% ($1,300.22)
55240 Clothing & Uniform Supplies $30,000.00 $44,652.33 ($14,652.33) 33.33% ($4,883.62)
55250 Vehicle & Equipmt Supplies $0.00 25.00% $0.00
55290 Other Operating Supplies $10,000.00 $9,885.98 $114.02 25.00% $28.51
55520 Building Supplies $6,000.00 $5,981.97 $18.03 25.00% $4.51

TOTAL $109,000.00 $133,853.22 ($24,853.22) ($7,830.64)

5600 CAPITAL OUTLAY
56310 Improvements, Not Buildings $25,000.00 $23,348.64 $1,651.36 0.00% $0.00
56410 Office Equipment < $10K $3,000.00 $2,421.24 $578.76 0.00% $0.00
56710 Other Equipment < $10K $20,000.00 $21,594.60 ($1,594.60) 0.00% $0.00

TOTAL $48,000.00 $47,364.48 $635.52 $0.00

5800 OTHER CHARGES
58220 Licenses & Permits $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 25.00% $250.00

TOTAL $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $250.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $9,655,752.00 $10,671,640.23 ($1,015,888.23) ($289,193.75)

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BUDGET
Prior Year Reconciliation
LINE ITEM DETAIL BUDGET EXPENDITURES

Item 4.1



2018-19 2018-19
Account # Description Budgeted Actual Diff. PercentageReconciliation

51110-51990 SALARIES & BENEFITS $8,824,252.00 $9,803,232.57 ($978,980.57) 27.75% ($271,667.11)

SERVICES
52110 Administrative Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 33.33% $0.00
52190 Misc Professional Services $25,000.00 $43,185.65 ($18,185.65) 33.33% ($6,061.28)
52210 Laboratory Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 33.33% $0.00
52220 Medical Services $15,000.00 $13,754.62 $1,245.38 33.33% $415.09
52230 Other Technical Services $3,500.00 $2,862.24 $637.76 33.33% $212.57
52240 Misc Technical Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 33.33% $0.00
53110 Utilities $16,000.00 $15,102.77 $897.23 0.00% $0.00
53230 Building Services $18,000.00 $22,732.73 ($4,732.73) 33.33% ($1,577.42)
53240 Landscape Services (Weed Abatement) $30,000.00 $44,812.46 ($14,812.46) 0.00% $0.00
53250 Vehicle/Equipmt Services $90,000.00 $129,993.41 ($39,993.41) 25.00% ($9,998.35)
53290 Misc Repair and Maintenance Services $194,000.00 $224,749.11 ($30,749.11) 33.33% ($10,248.68)
53320 Vehicle & Equipment Lease $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00
53330 Vehicle Charge $162,000.00 $77,083.70 $84,916.30 18.83% $15,989.74
53910 Solid Waste Service $8,000.00 $9,470.92 ($1,470.92) 33.33% ($490.26)
53990 Other Property Services $726.50 ($726.50) 33.33% ($242.14)
54210 Telephone $17,000.00 $14,300.86 $2,699.14 20.00% $539.83
54220 Mobile Expense $17,000.00 $14,373.08 $2,626.92 20.00% $525.38
54230 Internet Expense $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00% $0.00
54310 Legal Notices & Advertisements $3,000.00 $156.64 $2,843.36 25.00% $710.84
54410 Printing $6,000.00 $3,263.11 $2,736.89 25.00% $684.22
54610 Travel & Training $35,000.00 $34,997.00 $3.00 25.00% $0.75
54910 Dues & Subscriptions $14,000.00 $14,186.90 ($186.90) 25.00% ($46.72)
54990 Other Administrative Services $20,000.00 $21,438.26 ($1,438.26) 25.00% ($359.57)

SUPPLIES
55110 Office Supplies $6,000.00 $5,214.87 $785.13 25.00% $196.28
55120 Postage $1,000.00 $1,632.65 ($632.65) 25.00% ($158.16)
55130 Photocopy $3,000.00 $146.56 $2,853.44 25.00% $713.36
55210 Fuel $30,000.00 $39,004.79 ($9,004.79) 27.00% ($2,431.29)
55220 Safety Supplies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 30.00% $0.00
55230 Medical Supplies $23,000.00 $27,334.07 ($4,334.07) 30.00% ($1,300.22)
55240 Clothing & Uniforms $30,000.00 $44,652.33 ($14,652.33) 33.33% ($4,883.62)
55250 Vehicle & Equipment Supplies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 25.00% $0.00
55290 Other Operating Supplies $10,000.00 $9,885.98 $114.02 25.00% $28.51
55520 Building Supplies $6,000.00 $5,981.97 $18.03 25.00% $4.51
55590 Other Maintenance Supplies $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 25.00% $0.00
58220 Licenses & Permits $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 25.00% $250.00
58920 Misc Finance Expense $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 25.00% $0.00

CAPITAL
56310-56710 Property & Capital $48,000.00 $47,364.48 $635.52 0.00% $0.00

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $9,655,752.00 $10,671,640.23 ($1,015,888.23) ($289,193.75)

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BUDGET
Prior Year Reconciliation

Item 4.1



101 GENERAL FUND
Proposed

Budget FY20-21
5100 SALARIES & BENEFITS
51110 Salaries $5,412,746.23 27.75% $1,502,037.08
51130 Temporary/Part-time Salaries $0.00 27.75% $0.00
51140 Overtime Pay $400,000.00 27.75% $111,000.00
51145 FLSA Overtime pay $104,655.00 27.75% $29,041.76
51146 Non Suppression Overtime pay $85,000.00 27.75% $23,587.50
51150 Special Pay $100,000.00 27.75% $27,750.00
51210 PERS Constributions $2,455,051.90 27.75% $681,276.90
51220 FICA/MEDICARE $86,139.45 27.75% $23,903.70
51230 Benefits & Insurance $1,046,409.80 27.75% $290,378.72
51240 Workers Compensation $199,245.00 27.75% $55,290.49
51990 Salary Savings $0.00 27.75% $0.00

TOTAL $9,889,247.38 $2,744,266.15

5200 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
52190 Misc Professional Services $80,000.00 33.33% $26,664.00
52220 Medical Services $18,540.00 33.33% $6,179.38
52230 Other Technical Services $13,400.00 33.33% $4,466.22

TOTAL $111,940.00 $32,843.38

5300 PROPERTY SERVICES
53110 Utilities $19,200.00 0.00% $0.00
53230 Building Maintenance Services $20,000.00 33.33% $6,666.00
53240 Landscape/Park Maint Svcs $53,500.00 0.00% $0.00
53250 Vehicle/Equip Maint Svcs $126,280.00 25.00% $31,570.00
53290 Misc R&M Svcs $266,976.00 33.33% $88,983.10
53320 Vehicle & Equip Lease $0.00 0.00% $0.00
53330 Vehic Replcmt Rental Charge $30,000.00 18.83% $5,649.00
53910 Solid Waste Services $6,200.00 33.33% $2,066.46

TOTAL $522,156.00 $134,934.56

5400 OTHER SERVICES
54210 Telephone Expenses $17,000.00 20.00% $3,400.00
54220 Mobile/wireless Expenses $13,400.00 20.00% $2,680.00
54310 Legal Notices & Advertisements $5,000.00 25.00% $1,250.00
54410 Printing and Binding $6,180.00 25.00% $1,545.00
54610 Travel & Training $44,970.00 25.00% $11,242.50
54910 Dues & Subscriptions $14,690.00 25.00% $3,672.50
54990 Other Administrative Services $300.00 25.00% $75.00

TOTAL $101,540.00 $23,865.00

CITY OF EL CERRITO /KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

Proposed Contract Fee for FY 2020-21

LINE ITEM DETAIL BUDGET EXPENDITURES

Item 4.1



5500 SUPPLIES
55110 General Office Supplies $6,000.00 25.00% $1,500.00
55120 Postage & Delivery $2,400.00 25.00% $600.00
55130 Photocopying Charges $1,000.00 25.00% $250.00
55210 Fuel $42,800.00 27.00% $11,556.00
55230 Medical Supplies $28,200.00 30.00% $8,460.00
55240 Clothing & Uniform Supplies $53,600.00 33.33% $17,864.88
55250 Vehicle & Equipmt Supplies $14,490.00 25.00% $3,622.50
55290 Other Operating Supplies $8,500.00 25.00% $2,125.00
55520 Building Supplies $6,035.00 25.00% $1,508.75

TOTAL $163,025.00 $45,387.13

5600 CAPITAL OUTLAY
56310 Improvements, Not Buildings $7,800.00 0.00% $0.00
56410 Office Equipment <$10K $9,000.00 0.00% $0.00
56710 Other Equipment < $10K $6,000.00 0.00% $0.00
56720 Other Equipment > $10K $0.00 0.00% $0.00

TOTAL $22,800.00 $0.00

5800 OTHER CHARGES
58220 Licenses & Permits $5,450.00 25.00% $1,362.50

TOTAL $5,450.00 $1,362.50

GRAND TOTAL $10,816,158.38 $2,982,658.72

OVERHEAD CHARGES (9% 0f Personnel) $890,032.26 27.75% $246,983.95

TOTAL COMPENSATION COST SHARE $0.00 50.00% $0.00

UNRECONCILED CONTRACT AMOUNT $3,229,642.67

RECONCILIATION 2018-2019 FY BUDGET TO ACTUAL $289,193.75

COMPENSATION COST SHARE
RECONCILIATION FY 2018-2019 BUDGET TO 
ACTUAL ($662.00)

PROPOSED EC CONTRACT FEE FY 2020-2021 $3,518,174.42

Item 4.1



For the current fiscal year, the adopted contract fee was $3,088,752.09. At the March 11, 2020 Board Meeting, 
Glenn Lazof of RGS submitted mid-year budget review with an estimated budget to actual reconciliation of 
$242,036.00 or a revised total contract fee of $3,330,749.09.  

Reviewing the Fee Schedule Budget for Fiscal Year 2020-21, the proposed contract fee is $3,518,174.42 which 
is approximately a 6% increase over the last three years after reconciliation. There are some changes made this 
year to the Department’s operations to reduce overall costs. One of these is historical use of overtime to backfill 
vacancies. The Kensington Finance Committee as well as the Board has expressed their concerns on the amount 
of overtime every year and if it is really the most efficient use of labor. I am proposing to the City Council and 
it is reflected in this proposed fee schedule to fill the three vacancies and reduce the overtime budget. The PERS 
rates for new hires under the Pension Reform Act are considerably less than the Classic PERS costs.  

 The Fire Department is also anticipating another retirement by the end of the year and thus I have budgeted for 
the costs associated for that as well as the onetime costs to recruit, test and hire the new firefighters including 
their personal protective equipment. I have also budgeted promotional tests to establish new promotional lists 
that will be valid for 2 year. These measures along with the concessions made by the labor group on their 
salaries, and updating the personnel spread sheet calculations, I am confident that this budget will be very close 
to actual and that in future fee reviews, the District will not face large reconciliation costs.  

Please contact me with any questions you may have on these budget calculations. 

Respectfully,  

Michael Pigoni  
Fire Chief  
El Cerrito-Kensington Fire Department 
(510) 812-4503

Item 4.1



Item 4.2 

TO: Board of Directors 
Kensington Fire Protection District 

DATE: June 10,2020 

RE:  ADOPT PRELIMINARY FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021 BUDGET 

SUBMITTED BY: Mary A. Morris-Mayorga, Interim General Manager 

Recommended Action 

Adopt the preliminary combined revenue, operating expense, and capital 
improvement budget for fiscal year 2020-2021 (Resolution 20-07).     

Background 

As the District began development of the annual budget, staff created a new process 
in support of the Guiding Principles provided to the Board of Directors at the May 13, 
2020 meeting which are included in the Budget Development Manual.  This manual 
contains reference information useful to the Committee, Board and public for 
purposes of understanding the budget.  Due to the condensed timeframe for budget 
development this year as a result of staff transition and the pandemic, a high level 
budget was included in the manual.  Further detail on the budget has now been 
incorporated. 

On May 22, 2020 the Finance Committee discussed this item and approved placing this 
on the agenda for the next regular Board of Directors’ Meeting. 

Fiscal Impact 
The Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget is balanced and provide for all District services, 
programs and activities. 



Item 4.2

RESOLUTION 20-07 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE KENSINGTON FIRE 
PROTECTION DISTRICT ADOPTING THE PRELIMINARY COMBINED REVENUE, 
OPERATING EXPENSE, AND CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT BUDGET FOR FISCAL 

YEAR 2020-2021 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Kensington Fire Protection District has 
approved or otherwise established the preliminary annual fee for services from the City 
of El Cerrito for Fiscal Year 2020-2021; and  

WHEREAS, the preliminary combined budget was reviewed by the Finance 
Committee at the May 22, 2020 public meeting; and 

WHEREAS, a final Revenue, Operating Expense and Capital Improvement 
Budget shall be approved by the Board of Directors of the Kensington Fire Protection 
District by the statutory required date of October 1, 2020; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Directors hereby adopts 
the Preliminary Combined Revenue, Operating Expense and Capital Improvement 
Budget with its associated schedules for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 which is attached to and 
made part of this resolution. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * *

The foregoing resolution was duly adopted at a regular meeting of the Kensington 
Fire Protection District on the 10th day of June 2020 by the following vote of the Board. 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

_______________________ 
Julie Stein, President 

_______________________ 
Larry Nagel, Secretary 



Kensington Fire Protection District 

Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Proposed Budget 

Presented by 
Mary A. Morris-Mayorga 
Interim General Manager 

Item 4.2



Kensington Fire Protection District 
Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget 

2 | P a g e

Kensington Fire Protection District 
Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Proposed Budget 

Table of Contents 
Budget Message......................................................................................................................................... 4 

Elected and Appointed Officials ............................................................................................................... 5 

District Profile .............................................................................................................................................. 6 

Mission ......................................................................................................................................................... 7 

District Services .......................................................................................................................................... 7 

Community Programs ................................................................................................................................ 7 

Service Area Map ....................................................................................................................................... 8 

Strategic Planning and Goals ................................................................................................................... 8 

Organization Chart ..................................................................................................................................... 9 

Fund Structure ............................................................................................................................................ 9 

Budget Schedule ........................................................................................................................................ 9 

Fire Contract ............................................................................................................................................... 9 

Financial Plan ............................................................................................................................................. 9 

Committees ............................................................................................................................................... 10 

Emergency Preparedness Committee .............................................................................................. 10 

Finance Committee .............................................................................................................................. 10 

Code/Enabling Act ................................................................................................................................... 10 

Gann Limit ................................................................................................................................................. 10 

Resources ................................................................................................................................................. 10 

District Policies ................................................................................................................................. 10 

Districts Make the Difference.......................................................................................................... 10 

 ............................................................................................................................................................ 11 

Capital Funding......................................................................................................................................... 13 



Kensington Fire Protection District 
Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget 

3 | P a g e

 ............................................................................................................................................................ 13 

Capital Funds Annual Cumulative Annual Cumulative Annual Cumulative Annual Cumulative
FY 2020-21 75,880$  379,400$    71,167$  71,167$    10,264$  10,264$  450,000$   3,384,432$ 
FY 2021-22 75,880$  455,280$    71,167$  142,334$   10,264$  20,528$  3,384,432$ 
FY 2022-23 75,880$  531,160$    71,167$  213,501$   10,264$  30,792$  3,384,432$ 
FY 2023-24 75,880$  607,040$    71,167$  284,668$   10,264$  41,056$  3,384,432$ 
FY 2024-25 75,880$  682,920$    71,167$  355,835$   10,264$  51,320$  3,384,432$ 
FY 2025-26 75,880$  758,800$    71,167$  427,002$   10,264$  61,584$  3,384,432$ 
FY 2026-27 75,880$  834,680$    71,167$  498,169$   10,264$  71,848$  3,384,432$ 
FY 2027-28 75,880$  910,560$    71,167$  569,336$   10,264$  82,112$  3,384,432$ 
FY 2028-29 75,880$  986,440$    71,167$  640,503$   10,264$  92,376$  3,384,432$ 
FY 2029-30 75,880$  1,062,320$ 71,167$  711,670$   10,264$  102,640$   3,384,432$ 
FY 2030-31 75,880$  1,138,200$ 71,167$  782,837$   10,264$  112,904$   3,384,432$ 

Type I Vehicle 
Replacement

Type III Vehicle 
Replacement Command Vehicle

Building 
Improvements/Renovation



Kensington Fire Protection District 
Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget 

4 | P a g e

Budget Message 

June 10, 2020 

Board of Directors 
Kensington Fire Protection District 

Directors: 

It is my pleasure to present to you the Kensington Fire Protection District  
(“KFPD”) Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2020-2021.  This budget serves 
as the foundation for KFPD’s commitment to serving the Kensington 
community in protecting the lives, property, and environment of the 
community from the disastrous effects of fires, medical emergencies, 
natural disasters, and other hazardous conditions. 

KFPD has begun implementing a budget format which includes both 
financial information and narrative describing various aspects of KFPD. 
This serves not only to demonstrate the planned revenues and 
expenditures of KFPD, but also to communicate to the public important 
information on strategic planning and priorities. 

In the short-term, priorities include: 
 Updates to various policies;
 Potential renovation of the Public Safety Building;
 Refining and improving of internal processes;
 Identifying and implementing cost-savings opportunities; and
 Seeking Special District Certifications.

It is intended that this budget provides useful information to the Directors 
and members of the public.  Your feedback is welcomed to facilitate 
continuous improvement. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Mary A. Morris-Mayorga, MBA 
Interim General Manager 



Kensington Fire Protection District 
Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget 

5 | P a g e

Elected and Appointed Officials 

Board of Directors 

Don Dommer 
Janice Kosel 
Larry Nagel 

Kevin Padian, Vice President 
Julie Stein, President

Appointed 

Mary A. Morris-Mayorga 
Interim General Manager 

Michael Pigoni 
Fire Chief 



Kensington Fire Protection District 
Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget 

6 | P a g e

District Profile 
The unincorporated town of Kensington began a volunteer fire department in 1928.  
Twenty-four years later, the Kensington Fire Protection District (formed in 1937) hired a 
staff of professional firefighters under the supervision of a fire chief.  The District is 
organized under the State's Health & Safety Code Section 13800, commonly known as 
the Bergeson Fire District Law.  In 1995, the District entered into a contract with the City 
of El Cerrito whereby El Cerrito would provide all fire prevention, fire suppression and 
emergency services within Kensington for an annual fee.  As a result, the District's only 
current employee is its Interim General Manager (GM), Mary A. Morris-Mayorga.  Salary 
information for the District's GM can be found at www.publicpay.ca.gov. 

The early fire department was housed in a small, quaint English country-style building 
next to the Chevron Oil gas station on the Arlington.  The current public safety building, 
owned by the District, was constructed in 1970 and substantially renovated in 1999 and 
2004.  The District owns two fire engines, one specifically engineered for the steep, 
narrow streets of Kensington and the other a "Type III" or wildland engine for use during 
high fire season. 

In recent years the District embarked on a series of water system improvements by 
contract with the East Bay Municipal Utility District to enhance the provision of water 
along the wildland interface and to optimize the placement of hydrants throughout the 
community.  The District initiated paramedic service in 2001.  It offers the first engine-
based Advanced Life Support service in West Contra Costa County, bringing 
medications and equipment to a patient's side in under 5 minutes on average. 

The District is able to provide a timely and appropriate level of response by active 
participation with other West Contra Costa County fire agencies in automatic response 
agreements that use the combined resources of all agencies to serve the area 
irrespective of jurisdictional lines. 

The District operates a Community Emergency Response Team Training (CERT) 
program under the direction of Battalion Chief David Gibson. For more information on 
CERT, see our "CERT Training" tab or www.el-cerrito.org/index.aspx?nid=133. 
Funding for District expenses is provided by property tax revenues as well as a special 
tax approved by the voters in 1980. 



Kensington Fire Protection District 
Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget 

7 | P a g e

Mission 
Our mission is to provide the highest level of service to Kensington in order to protect 
the lives, property, and environment of the community from the disastrous effects of 
fires, medical emergencies, natural disasters, and other hazardous conditions. 

District Services 
Kensington Fire Protection District provides emergency medical, fire education, 
prevention and suppression services to the town of Kensington, California. 
Training 2016 
Medical - EMS    785 Hours 
Operations    13,592 Hours 
Physical Fitness    1,034 Hours 
Internet-Based Safety Training    1,071 Hours     
Fire Prevention and Public Education 2016 
Fire Inspections (Fire Company)    57 
Mandatory (Schools/Jails/Convalescent)    2 
Self Inspections    8 
Vegetation Management Inspections    2,211 
Vegetation Management Re-Inspections    69 
Construction Plan Checks    7 
Construction Inspections    12 

Community Programs 
 Apply to the Emergency Preparedness Committee
 CERT (Community Emergency Response Team)
 Parking Flyer for Neighbors
 CPR / First Aid Training
 Free Smoke Detectors for Elderly, Disabled and Low-Income Resident
 Car Seat Installation Program
 School Tours



Kensington Fire Protection District 
Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget 

8 | P a g e

Service Area Map 

Strategic Planning and Goals 
The District’s last strategic planning session was held on May 6, 2015 and the following 
objectives were identified: 

1. Reducing loss of life and property and safeguarding the environment by
2. effectively responding to fire, rescue and medical emergencies, hazardous material

incidents and major disasters;
3. Helping members of the community reduce the frequency and
4. severity of fires, accidents and natural disasters by providing public education

programs;
5. Reducing threats to public safety by enforcing laws, codes and ordinances covering

fire and
6. life safety and by abating identified fire hazards on City, private and other agencies'

property; and
7. Maintaining personnel, apparatus, equipment and facilities in a constantly ready

condition.



Kensington Fire Protection District 
Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget 

9 | P a g e

Organization Chart 

Fund Structure 
District financial activities are recorded in three major governmental funds. 

General Fund - operating fund of the District and is used for all financial resources 
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.  

Special Revenue Fund - accounts for the special tax authorized by Section 53978 of the 
Government Code and approved by the District’s electorate on April 8, 1980. 

Capital Project Fund - used to account for financial resources in the acquisition, 
construction, or rehabilitation of major capital facilities and inventory. 

Budget Schedule 
In general, the annual budget schedule is as follows: 

Action When 
Strategic Plan As determined by the BOD 
Long-Term Financial Plan (update) April 
Review with Finance Committee May 
Presentation to BOD June 
Approval June 
Adoption September 
Monitoring Ongoing 

Fire Contract 
Fire protection is provided pursuant to the contract between the Kensington Fire 
Protection District and the City of El Cerrito, originally signed in 1995 with updates in 
2005 and 2009. 
Kensington-El Cerrito Fire Services Contract 

Financial Plan 
The District is in the initial phase of developing a long-term financial plan. 

Board of Directors

General Manager

Fire Services Contract 
(administration)

Fire Chief

Legal Counsel (contract)



Kensington Fire Protection District 
Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget 

10 | P a g e

Committees 
Emergency Preparedness Committee 
Directors: Larry Nagel and Kevin Padian 
Public Members: Ms. Lisa Caronna, Ms. Katie Gluck, Mr. Peter Guerrero, Mr. Peter Liddell, 

Mr. Paul Moss, Mr. David Spath 

Finance Committee 
Directors: Don Dommer and Julie Stein 

Code/Enabling Act 
California Health & Safety Code Section 13800, commonly known as the Bergeson Fire 
District Law. 

Gann Limit 

Resources 
District Policies 

Districts Make the Difference 

Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Limit 4,660,000$   
Per Capita Personal Income Ratio 1.0373
Population % Change Ratio 1.0026
Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Limit 4,846,386$   



Kensington Fire Protection District 
Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget 

11 | P a g e

Budget Summary 

FY 2020 FY 2021
Revenues Projected Budget Amount %

Property taxes 4,263,164$  4,263,164$  -$  0.0%

Special taxes 200,654  200,450  (204) -0.1%

Other taxes 25,016  25,250  234 0.9%

Lease income 36,604  36,603  (1) 0.0%

Other revenues 1,610  (1,610)  

Salary reimb/recon income 23,094  - (23,094) -67.1%

Investment income 71,673  121,800  50,127 41.8%

Total Revenues 4,621,815  4,647,267  25,452 0.5%

Expenditures

Fire Services/Expenses 3,390,100  3,528,175  138,075  4.1%

Services/Supplies 661,500  575,400  (86,100)  -11.0%

Utilities 22,003  23,100  1,097  5.0%

Capital Outlay* 437,000  607,311  170,311  39.0%

Total Expenditures 4,510,603  4,733,986  223,383  4.9%

Revenues Less Expenditures 111,212  (86,719)  

Fund Balance - Beginning 4,956,696  5,067,908  

Fund Balance - Ending 5,067,908$  4,981,189$  (86,719)$   -1.7%

Capital Outlay includes reserve funding

Variance



Kensington Fire Protection District 
Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget 

12 | P a g e

Budget Detail 
FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2020 FY 2021

Revenues Actual Budget Projected Budget
Property taxes 4,126,850$  4,263,164$  4,263,164$  4,263,164$  
Special taxes 200,453  200,450  200,654  200,450  
Other taxes 25,306  25,250  25,016  25,250  
Other revenues 4,314  - 1,610 -  
Lease income 36,036  36,603  36,604 36,603  
Salary reimb/recon income 63,521  34,400  23,094 -  
Investment income 73,726  120,000  71,673 121,800  
Total Revenues 4,530,206  4,679,867  4,621,815  4,647,267  

Expenditures
City of El Cerrito service contract 2,865,231  3,194,000  3,194,000  3,229,643  
City of El Cerrito contract reconciliation 213,699  137,000  137,000  288,532  
Retiree Health Insurance -  -  -  -  
Firefighter's apparel/expenses 2,604  5,750  59,100  10,000  
Insurance 12,507  14,000  13,385  14,420  
Office wages and related expenses 128,663  68,085  88,432  113,834  
Contra Costa County expenses 36,061  37,630  37,630  38,759  
Wildland vegetation management 7,500  12,600  12,600  12,600  
Fire abatement contract 665  11,250  1,000  10,000  
LAFCO 2,278  2,550  2,548  2,601  
Professional development 3,416  7,500  4,655  10,000  
Legal fees 57,457  53,600  48,217  50,000  
Professional consulting service fees 5,532  -  -  -  
Accounting 4,683  4,000  5,904  20,000  
Actuarial valuation - 2,900 2,900  5,600  
Audit fees 16,000  16,000 16,000  17,500  
IT services and equipment 2,600  17,620 12,000  12,000  
Feasibility study - 115,000 54,995  60,000  
Fire engineer plan review 404  2,000  1,481  2,060  
Grant writer/coordinator -  -  -  -  
Polygon study -                   10,000 6,000  10,300  
RFP consultant -                   15,000 18,055  15,450  
RGS Contract -                   226,000 212,647  
Temporary Services (Admin Asst) 21,000  
Traffic study -                   20,000 16,668  
Public education 9,551  27,000 12,876  27,810  
Pharmaceutical Drop-Off 814  2,500  - 2,575 
CERT Emergency Kits/Sheds 3,448  3,500  - 3,605 
Open Houses 261  1,800  1,350  1,854 
Community Shredder 2,295  3,200  1,943  3,296 
Demonstration garden 6,147  -  -  -  
DFS Matching Grants 23,880  24,000  - 24,720 
Firesafe planting grants -                   3,000 - 3,090 
Community sandbags 1,994           1,500 - 1,545 
Volunteer appreciation -                   1,500 - 1,545 
Community center contribution -                   35,000 35,000  -  
Office expense and supplies 5,006  5,800 3,846  5,916  
Telephone 5,265  8,200  10,577  8,610  
Gardening service 1,560  2,000  780  2,100  
Building alarm 1,264  800  1,939  840  
Medical waste disposal 4,562  8,000  5,711  8,400  
Janitorial Service 1,260  1,500  1,386  1,575  
Miscellaneous Maintenance 8,182  17,000  18,809  17,850  
Gas and electric 7,112  10,600  7,670  11,130  
Water/sewer 2,379  2,400  1,817  2,520  
Memberships 7,340  11,000  10,472  11,220  
Elections 3,856  -  -  4,000  
Staff appreciation 1,275  1,750  1,017  1,750  
Contingency -  -  1,768  25,000  
Debt Services - Principal (CalPERS settlement) 4,760           - 11,425 11,425  
Capital Outlay 13,388         437,000  437,000 607,311  

Total Expenditures 3,474,899  4,581,535  4,510,603  4,733,986  
Revenues Less Expenditures 1,055,307  98,332  111,212  (86,719)  
Fund Balance - Beginning 3,901,389    4,956,696  4,956,696  5,067,908  
Fund Balance - Ending 4,956,696$  5,055,028$  5,067,908$  4,981,189$  



Kensington Fire Protection District 
Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget 

13 | P a g e

Cash Reserves 

Capital Funding

Operating Capital CERBT Total

Beginning Reserve 4,094,566$   4,280,053$   1,010,137$   9,384,756$   

Revenue 4,647,267$   607,311$   5,254,578$   

Operating Expditures 3,903,292$   38,128$  14,639,334$   

Capital Expenditures 607,311$   607,311$   

Ending Reserve 4,231,230$   4,887,364$   972,009$   10,090,603$   

Capital Funds Annual Cumulative Annual Cumulative Annual Cumulative Annual Cumulative
FY 2020-21 75,880$  379,400$    71,167$  71,167$    10,264$  10,264$  450,000$   3,384,432$ 
FY 2021-22 75,880$  455,280$    71,167$  142,334$   10,264$  20,528$  3,384,432$ 
FY 2022-23 75,880$  531,160$    71,167$  213,501$   10,264$  30,792$  3,384,432$ 
FY 2023-24 75,880$  607,040$    71,167$  284,668$   10,264$  41,056$  3,384,432$ 
FY 2024-25 75,880$  682,920$    71,167$  355,835$   10,264$  51,320$  3,384,432$ 
FY 2025-26 75,880$  758,800$    71,167$  427,002$   10,264$  61,584$  3,384,432$ 
FY 2026-27 75,880$  834,680$    71,167$  498,169$   10,264$  71,848$  3,384,432$ 
FY 2027-28 75,880$  910,560$    71,167$  569,336$   10,264$  82,112$  3,384,432$ 
FY 2028-29 75,880$  986,440$    71,167$  640,503$   10,264$  92,376$  3,384,432$ 
FY 2029-30 75,880$  1,062,320$ 71,167$  711,670$   10,264$  102,640$   3,384,432$ 
FY 2030-31 75,880$  1,138,200$ 71,167$  782,837$   10,264$  112,904$   3,384,432$ 

Type I Vehicle 
Replacement

Type III Vehicle 
Replacement Command Vehicle

Building 
Improvements/Renovation



TO: Auditor Controller of Contra Costa County:
        Forwarded herewith are the following invoices and claims for goods and services received which have been approved for payment:

TRANSMITTAL - APPROVAL

KENSINGTON FPD PY/CY:
TRANSMITTAL #2 - APPROVAL BATCH #.:

Invoices DATE : 6/10/2020
LOCATION #: 13

FILENAME: KENSINGTON

VEND 
# VENDOR NAME

INVOICE 
DATE DESCRIPTION

FUND 
/ORG

SUB-
ACCT TASK OPT.

ACTIVITY 
/WORK 
AUTH.

ENCUMB 
(P.O.) / 

Invoice # P/C

PAYMENT 
AMOUNT

50283 Regional Government Services 4/30/2020 RGS Contrct Services for April 2020 7840 2490 10919 $25,388.35

TOTAL $25,388.35

Kensington FPD Approval

1

Kensington FPD Approval
________________________Date: ___/___/___
________________________Date: ___/___/___

Item 4.3



Item 4.3



Item 4.3



Item 4.3













Item 4.3 

  
 
 

 
 
TO:  President Board of Directors 
  Kensington Fire Protection District 
 

DATE:  May 13, 2020 
 
   
SUBMITTED BY: Glenn Lazof, Administration and Finance Advisor 
  John Mercurio, Project Advisor 
  Shahrzad Pantera, Finance Advisor 
  Sasha Amiri-Nair, Board Clerk Advisor 
  MJ Brown, Board Clerk Advisor 
 

RGS Activity Report for April 
 

Board Meetings:  Prepare for practice for April regular meeting via Zoom. 
Begin preparation of Agenda and Materials Regular Meeting of May 
including participation and minutes.   Special meeting of May 1 including 
discussions regarding agenda, including a fair amount of time with the 
President working out the complexity of holding a Closed Session on 
Zoom. 
 
Transition:  Anticipating a Transition to an Interim General Manager, RGS 
began limiting our activities the first full week of May.   This course will 
avoid duplication of effort, prevent us from being out of sync with the 
approach of leadership, and of course reduce charges for our services 
during the month. 
 
As of this writing RGS is restricting activity to:  
 
                Processing bills for transmittal payment. 
                Scheduling Board or Committee Meetings, as requested. 

Transferring files, completed desk manuals, and items on the 
District Computer or other designated locations 



 

 

Salary Computation for Chief Pigoni for upcoming 
reconciliation 
Review e-mails and voice mail to district and forward or 
respond as appropriate.  
Preparing materials and Agendas for board and committee 
meetings as requested, including Financial Report 
Support for E-mail host migration 

 
This list will continue to be expanded or contracted at the request of the 
Interim General Manager. 
 
Administration:   
On site time, two days per week was suspended through the month.  (As 
of this writing Contra Costa County Shelter in Place is in effect through 
May). 
 
Fireplug:  Final text edit has been submitted by President; distribution 
should be imminent.   
 
Finance:  Ongoing accounts payable AP including report and check 
processing, Transmittal, and Supplemental Transmittal.  Challenges to 
these processes, related to the shelter in place orders, that had to be 
overcome.  President Stein made the excellent suggestion that we utilize 
the transmittal process as often as we can during the shelter in place 
order.  We have implemented this and a supplemental transmittal was 
prepared for the Special Meeting held May 1. 
 
After you have interim staff in place, and the shelter in place is lifted, it 
is recommended that the Board lift the dollar limit on the amount 
permitted to be held in the Mechanics Bank account.1   This would enable 
your staff to manage cash, and give the district full control of accounts 
payable.  It would also be far less time consuming than the current 
method. The only item that would need to be on the County Transmittal 
would be the monthly replenishment of the Mechanics Bank account, 
although the District might opt to keep the large Monthly Fire Contract 
payment with the county.   The vast majority of public agencies manage 
all aspects of their Accounts Payable and the Interim General Manager 
can establish procedures which provide for similar, or stronger controls 

 
1 Research needed, to determine if there is a legal reason the District has adopted the current system for payable 
transactions using the County. 



 

 

than currently exist in place for the account payments and transparent 
reporting on expenditures.    RGS will assist if requested. 
 
Significant time was spent communicating with PERS about payments.   
Much of the confusion is due to issues with lack of online access to 
invoices, delayed payments, miscommunications related to payments 
coming direct from the county among other issues.  The Board will soon 
be able to appoint an administrator to access invoices, post payments, 
and receive and transmit information online.  PERS agreed to help set this 
up and training for the PERS administrator should occur when the interim 
GM is appointed.   There is strong reason to expect improvements shortly.  
 
RGS and President Stein agreed to engagement of Maze and Associates 
CPA Jessie Kim.   Jessie has had success resolving reconciliations between 
the KPPCSD’s financial system and the County Ledgers.   Rather than ask 
Shahrzad to re-invent the wheel, it was more obviously cost efficient to 
subcontract to cover the same ground for us, and point the way forward.  
The objective is to leave the Interim GM with a CPA reviewed starting 
point for the District Financial reporting, and reconciliation between the 
County and District records.  This phase of the engagement was intended 
to end May 13, 2020, and permit the Interim GM, who has particular 
finance expertise, to decide if this service is needed.   The District can 
still contract for this service directly with Maze if the Interim GM is 
interested. 
 
Jessie’s rate with Maze is $140 an hour.  It was agreed that RGS will pass 
the cost through to the district on the expense invoice.   However, only 
an introductory discussion has occurred so the charge should not be 
significant.  
 
California Employers' Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT) Fund:  Met with 
Trustee to discuss particulars of the Trust and Transaction procedures.  
Filed FY 2019 actuarial report.  Wrote memo (attached) for Interim GM 
and Finance Committee to pass on the information on workings and 
requirements of CBERT.  There are also options in that report to 
reimbursement that the Interim GM and Board may wish to consider. 
 
 



 

 

RGS completed research into retiree dental payment reporting and source 
of revenue offsets.  We are available to consult with the Interim GM 
regarding next steps and assist as directed. 
 
RGS Team Change:  Shahrzad Pantera will roll of the team May 6.   We 
are joined by Linda Wong.  Linda is a CPA with 11 years of Governmental 
Accounting experience, including the cities of Walnut Creek and Concord.   
We were fortunate to have overlap to provide for a smooth transition, as 
Linda shadowed Shahrzad’s work.   
 
This change was for RGS’ benefit.  There will be no charge for Ms. Wong’s 
time prior to Shahrzad’s departure, nor will there be a change in the 
billing rate. 
 
Local Agency Investment Fund:  First Quarter 2020 $21,567.87 earned, 
final balance $4,329,310.81.  2.03% interest rate.   
 
Committees:  RGS assisted with posting the EPC agenda.  
 
Information Services:  
We continued to have issues with e-mail receiving and sending.  New e-
mail host discussion by Directors scheduled May 1 Special Meeting.  The IT 
Committee desired a Board discussion 
 
Nerd Crossing has proceeded with the improved VPN solution. The 
establishment of this enhanced connection to the KFPD computer has 
improved reliability and made access much simpler for the team. The 
access to email has been much improved. 
 
Minutes Backlog:  The minutes of October 10 & 17, November 13, 2019 
and February 12, 2020 were completed.   We anticipate that minutes of 
XX, XXX &XX will be presented for approval at the June meeting.  This 
will wipe out the backlog. 
 
Building Maintenance: 
There has been a recurring issue with a sink in the Fire Quarters. John 
Mercurio spoke with fire staff to understand what was going on (a strange 
gurgling sound and a very slow drain) He called Olivero Plumbing and 
asked them to make a visit and investigate. No other contact has been 
received from fire staff. 



 

 

An ongoing electrical issue was referred to Mighetto Electric. John 
Mercurio called the owner and described what was occurring, as relayed 
to him by fire staff. A loud humming was emanating from an electrical 
box which has caused problems in the past, which Mighetto Electric is 
familiar with. The possible solution to this is a new part.   
 
 



Item 4.5 

TO: Board of Directors 
Kensington Fire Protection District 

DATE: June 10, 2020 

RE: PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO POLICY 130 PAY PERIODS 
REGARDING TIME APPROVAL FIRST READING 

SUBMITTED BY: Mary A. Morris-Mayorga, Interim General Manager 

Recommended Action 

Consider approval of proposed amendments to Policy 130 – Pay Periods and hold first 
reading.     

Background 

District policies do not currently contain language for review of staff and the General 
Manager’s timesheets.  To support internal controls it is recommended this be 
incorporated.  Policy 130 – Pay Periods is the best fit within policies to include this 
provision; staff proposed amendments and consulted legal counsel for review and 
revision. 

On May 22, 2020 the Finance Committee discussed this item and approved placing this 
on the agenda for the next regular Board of Directors’ Meeting accordance with Policy 
1010 – Adoption/Amendment of Policies. 

Fiscal Impact 
There is no fiscal impact. 



KENSINGTON  FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
EMPLOYEE  HANDBOOK 

POLICY TITLE: 
POLICY NUMBER: 

Pay Periods and Time Sheets and Time Reporting/Approval 
130 

130.10  The salaries and wages of all District employees shall be paid semibi-monthly, being 
two seven business days after the 15th day and two seven business days after the last day of every 
month.  Pay periods are 1st-15th and 16th – 31st. 

130.20  Unless otherwise specified through individual employment agreements, all employees must 
complete timesheets bi-monthly.  Timesheets must be completed and submitted on or before the 
last day of the pay period.  Late submittal may delay payment of wages.  All Ttimesheets, for 
support staffexcept that of the General Manager willshall be approvedreviewed and approved by 
the General Manager prior to payroll processing.  General Manager timesheets shall be submitted 
for payroll processing and to the Finance Committee for review.  Any issues arising out of the 
General Manager’s timesheets may be referred by the Finance Committee to the Board of 
Directors.For internal control purposes, the General Manager’s timesheet will be approved by the 
Finance Committee which may be prior to or after payroll processing depending upon meeting 
schedule.  Performance and/or productivity of the General Manager will be assessed by the full 
Board of Directors through a variety of reporting. 

Item 4.5



KFPD EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
Policy #170 - "Discrimination, Harassment, and Retaliation Prevention" 

8

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 

POLICY TITLE: Discrimination, Harassment, and Retaliation Prevention 
POLICY NUMBER:  170 

170.10    Establishment and Purpose. 

The Kensington Fire Protection District (“District”) is committed to providing and maintaining a 
respectful and inclusive work environment that is free from discrimination and harassment based 
on a protected category, and an environment free from retaliation for its participating in any 
protected activity covered by this policy. In accordance with this commitment, it is the policy of 
the District to provide equal employment opportunities to all employees that is free of harassment. 
and applicants for employment.  

Accordingly, the Kensington Fire Protection District hereby adopts this Discrimination, 
Harassment, and Retaliation Prevention Policy (“DHR Policy”) in order to reaffirm the District’s 
commitment to preventing and correcting unlawful discrimination, harassment, and retaliation in 
the workplace; to provide equal employment opportunities to all employees and applicants for 
employment; to define discrimination, harassment, and retaliation prohibited under this policy; 
and to set forth procedures and guidelines for investigating and resolving complaints of conduct 
prohibited by this policy. 

The DHR Policy is intended to describe the District’s procedures regarding compliance with state 
and federal laws and regulations. Nothing in the DHR Policy is intended to be in conflict with such 
laws and regulations, or inconsistent with other personnel policies maintained by the District 
including, but not limited to, the Employee Handbook or the Code of Conduct. Should any conflict 
exist as to the District’s personnel policies, the DHR Policy shall supersede. 

170.20   Basis of Authority. 

In accordance with Policy No. 1030 of the Policy Handbook, the Board of Directors (“Board”) is 
the unit of authority within the District.  

Effective ________, 2020, the Board of Directors hereby adopts the Discrimination, Harassment, 
and Retaliation Prevention Policy and the provisions contained herein. 

170.30   Protected Categories and Protected Activities. Formatted: Font: Bold

Item 4.6



KFPD EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
Policy #170 - "Discrimination, Harassment, and Retaliation Prevention" 

8

It is the District’s policy to provide a workplace free of unlawful discriminatory or harassing 
conduct. As such, the District prohibits sexualdiscrimination or harassment and harassment 
becausebased on any of the following categories: race, color, religion, creed (including religious 
creed, color, dress and grooming practices), national origin or, ancestry, citizenship status, physical 
or mental disability, medical condition, marital status, age (including HIV/AIDS, cancer, or a 
record or history of cancer), genetic information or genetic characteristics, marital status, sex 
(including pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding, or related medical conditions), gender, gender 
identity, gender expression, sexual orientation or any other basis protected by federal, state or 
local, age (40 years and over), veteran and/or military status, political activities or affiliations, 
status as a victim of domestic violence, assault, or stalking, protected medical leaves (requesting 
or being approved for leave due to one’s own serious health condition or to care for one’s family), 
and any other status protected by state or federal law (“protected categories” or “protected 
characteristics”). 

170., ordinance or regulation.31  This policy applies to all aspects of employment, 
including, but not limited to hiring, job assignment, compensation, promotion, benefits, training, 
discipline, and termination. Reasonable accommodation may be available for qualified individuals 
with disabilities or religious beliefs or practices, as defined by law.1 

170.persons involved in the operation of the District and 32  In addition, the District
prohibits harassment by retaliation against a person who engages in activities protected under this 
policy, such as: reporting, or assisting in reporting, suspected violations of this policy and 
cooperating in investigations or proceedings arising out of a violation of this policy (“protected 
activities”). 

170.40   Scope of Protection. 

The DHR Policy applies to all District employees2 (co-workers, supervisors, and managers), 
applicants, interns, volunteers, contractors, and elected or appointed officials in the workplace. In 
addition, the DHR Policy extends to conduct with a connection to an employee’s work, even when 
the conduct takes place away from District premises, such as a business trip or business-related 
social function.  

All employees, as well as any individual who comes in contact with such employees, are expected 
to support the District’s anti-discrimination, anti-harassment, anti-retaliation, and equal 
employment opportunity policies, and to take all steps necessary to maintain a workplace free from 
discrimination, harassment, and retaliation. 

1 The District recognizes and supports the obligation to reasonably accommodate employees with 
disabilities or religious beliefs or practices in order to allow those employees to perform the essential functions of 
their jobs. If an employee believes they need a reasonable accommodation based on disability or a religious belief or 
practice, the employee should discuss the matter with their supervisor or the General Manager. 

2 Hereinafter, as used in the DHR Policy, “employees” includes interns, volunteers, contractors, and elected 
or appointed officials in the workplace. 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Item 4.6



KFPD EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
Policy #170 - "Discrimination, Harassment, and Retaliation Prevention" 

8

Discriminatory or harassing conduct by or towards any employee of the District, applicant, or 
anyone who comes into contact with a District employee in the course of their employment will 
not be tolerated. Any employee who violates this policy will be subject to disciplinary action, up 
to and including termination of their employment. The District will take appropriate corrective 
action to remedy any policy violations made by an intern, volunteer, contractor, elected or 
appointed official, or any other person with whom the District has a business, service, or 
professional relationship. 

170.50   Responsibilities and Rights. 

170.51  All employees are expected to assume responsibility for maintaining a work 
environment that is free from discrimination, harassment, and retaliation. Employees are 
encouraged to promptly report conduct that they believe violates the DHR Policy so that the 
District has an opportunity to address and resolve any concerns.  

170.52  Managers and supervisors3 are required to promptly report conduct that they 
believe violates the DHR Policy. All managerial and supervisory employees must report any 
complaints of misconduct to the General Manager or their designee. The District is committed to 
responding to alleged violations of this policy in a timely and fair manner and to taking appropriate 
action aimed at ending the prohibited conduct. 

170.53  All District employees have the following rights: 

170.531 The right to a discrimination, harassment, and retaliation-free work 
environment. 

170.532  The right to file a complaint of discrimination, harassment, or retaliation. 
Employees are encouraged to report inappropriate conduct immediately and, whenever possible, 
to put the complaint or concern in writing. 

170.533  The right to a full, impartial and prompt investigation by a District 
representative or designee into allegations of conduct that would violate this policy. 

170.534  The right to be timely informed of appropriate information related to the 
outcome of an investigation either as a complainant or a respondent in the investigation. 

170.535  The right to be represented by a person of the complainant’s choosing at 
each and all steps of the complaint process. 

3 “Managers” or “supervisors” means any individual having the authority, in the interest of the employer, to 
hire, transfer, suspend, layoff, recall, promote, discharge, assign, reward, or discipline other employees, or the 
responsibility to direct them, or to adjust their grievances, or effectively to recommend that action.  

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Item 4.6



KFPD EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
Policy #170 - "Discrimination, Harassment, and Retaliation Prevention" 

8

170.536  The right to be free from retaliation or reprisal after filing a complaint or 
participating in the complaint process. 

170.537  The right to file a complaint directly with the California Department of 
Fair Employment and Housing, the federal Equal Employment Opportunity Commission or other 
appropriate state or federal agencies, or to file a civil action in the appropriate court.   

170.60  170.20 Prohibited Conduct. 

Discrimination or harassment based solely, or in part, on an individual’s protected characteristic 
or association with a member of a protected category, as defined in Policy No. 170.30, is 
expressly prohibited. In addition, the District also prohibits retaliation against a person engaging 
in any protected activities, as defined in Policy No. 170.32. The definition of what constitutes 
discrimination, harassment, and retaliation for purposes of this DHR Policy is provided in further 
detail below. 

Conduct need not rise to the level of a violation of law to violate this policy. A single act can 
violate the DHR Policy and provide grounds for discipline or other appropriate corrective actions. 
When the District determines that this policy has been violated, it will take immediate and 
appropriate action to remedy and prevent such discrimination or harassment in the workplace, in 
the conduct of employment, or other personnel practices of the District, which may include 
discipline, up to and including termination. In addition, any employee found to have retaliated 
against another employee who engages in any protected activities as defined by this policy shall 
be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including termination. 

170.70   Discrimination. 

As used in the DHR Policy, discrimination is defined as the unequal treatment of an employee or 
applicant in any aspect of employment, including discrimination based solely, or in part, on the 
employee or applicant’s protected characteristic, as provided in Policy No. 170.30.  

170.71  Discrimination includes any adverse employment action or differential treatment 
of an employee or other person doing business with the District based on the individual’s protected 
characteristic. In addition, prohibited discriminatory conduct under this policy also includes 
unequal treatment based upon the employee or applicant’s association with a member of these 
protected categories or classes. 

170.72  Discrimination may include, but is not necessarily limited to: hostile or demeaning 
behavior towards applicants or employees because of a protected characteristic; allowing the 
applicant’s or employee’s protected characteristic to be a factor in hiring, promotion, 
compensation or other employment-related decisions unless otherwise permitted by applicable 
law, and providing unwarranted assistance or withholding work-related assistance, cooperation, 

Formatted: Tab stops:  1", Left

Item 4.6



KFPD EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
Policy #170 - "Discrimination, Harassment, and Retaliation Prevention" 

8

and/or information to applicants or employees because of their protected characteristic. 

170.80   Harassment. 

Harassment under this policy is defined as disrespectful or unprofessional conduct, including 
disrespectful or unprofessional conduct based on any of the protected categories provided in Policy 
No. 170.30. 

Harassment can be verbal (such as slurs, jokes, insults, epithets, gestures, or teasing), visual (such 
as the posting or distribution of offensive posters, symbols, cartoons, drawings, computer displays, 
or emails), or physical conduct (such as physically threatening another person, blocking someone’s 
way, making physical contact in an unwelcome manner, etc.). 

170.81  Sexual Harrassment Definition Examples.  Sexual harassment manifests itself in 
many forms.  The following are a fewHarassment 

As used in this policy, sexual harassment is defined as harassment based on sex or conduct of a 
sexual nature, and includes harassment based on sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, 
breastfeeding, or related medical conditions), gender, and gender identity or gender expression. It 
may include all of the actions described above as harassment, as well as other unwelcome sex-
based conduct, such as unwelcome or unsolicited sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, 
conversations regarding sexual activities, or other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature. 
Sexually harassing conduct need not be motivated by sexual desire and may include situations that 
began as reciprocal relationships, but that later cease to be reciprocal. 

Some examples of sexual harassment are: 

170.21 Written:  sexually suggestive or obscene letters, notes or invitations. 
170.811 

170.22 Verbal:  sexually derogatory comments, slurs, jokes, remarks or epithets. 

170.23 Visual:  leering, making sexual gestures, or displaying sexually suggestive 
objectives, pictures, cartoons or posters. 

170.24 Physical:  assault, attempted rape, impeding or blocking movement, or touching.  

170.25 Other: 

170.251  Sexual advances which are unwanted (this may include situations which 
began as reciprocal attractions, but later ceased to be reciprocal). 

170.252  Employees who are subjected to hazing (this may include being dared or 
asked to perform unsafe work practices, having tools and equipment stolen, etc.) if requests for 

Formatted: Font: Bold, No underline

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Item 4.6



KFPD EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
Policy #170 - "Discrimination, Harassment, and Retaliation Prevention" 

8

sexual favors are not met. 

170.253  Employment benefits affected in exchange for sexual favors (may include 
situations where an individual is treated less favorably because others have acquiesced to sexual 
advances). 

170.254  Implying or actually withholding support for appointment, promotion, 
transfer or change of assignment; or initiating a rejection on probation or adverse action; or 
suggesting that a poor performance report will be prepared if requests for sexual favors are not 
met. 

170.255  Reprisals or threats after negative response to sexual advances. 

170.30  Harassment because of race, religious creed, color, national origin or ancestry, physical or 
mental disability, medical condition, marital status, age, sexual orientation or any other protected 
basis is prohibited, including, but not limited to the following behavior: 

170.31  Verbal conduct such as epithets, derogatory jokes or comments, slurs or unwanted sexual 
advances, invitations or comments; 

170.32812  Visual conduct such as derogatory and/or sexually- oriented posters, 
photographyphotography, cartoons, drawings, e-mail, faxes, or gestures; 

170.33813  Physical conduct such as assault, unwanted touching, blocking normal 
movement or interfering with work directed at an employee because of the employee’s sex, race 
or any other protected basis; and,characteristic; 

170.34814  Use of social media to conduct sexual advances and or harassment; 

170.815  Threats and demands to submit to sexual requests in order keep one’s job 
or avoid some other loss, and offers of employment benefits in return for sexual favors; 

170.816  Retaliation for having reported or threatened to report unlawful 
harassment. 

170.40   If an employee of the District believes that they have been harassed, they should provide 
a written complaint to any member of the Board of Directors.  As soon as possible thereafter, the 
Board will undertake an immediate, thorough and objective investigation of the harassment allega-
tion(s). 

170.50   If it is determined that harassment has occurred, effective remedial action will be taken in 

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Font: Bold

Item 4.6



KFPD EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
Policy #170 - "Discrimination, Harassment, and Retaliation Prevention" 

8

accordance with the circumstances involved.  Any employee determined to be responsible for 
harassment will be subjected to appropriate disciplinary action, up to and including termination. 

170.82  Sexual harassment is generally categorized into two types: 

170.821 Quid Pro Quo (“this for that”) 

1. Submission to sexual conduct is made explicitly or implicitly a term or
condition of an individual's employment. 

2. Submission to or rejection of the conduct by an employee is used as the
basis for employment decisions affecting the employee. 

170.822  Hostile Work Environment 

This type of sexual harassment is defined as conduct of a sexual nature, or 
on the basis of sex, by any person in the workplace that unreasonably 
interferes with an employee’s work performance and/or creates an 
intimidating, hostile, or otherwise offensive working environment. 
Examples include: 

 Unwelcome sexual advances, flirtation, teasing, sexually suggestive
or obscene letters, invitations, notes, emails, voicemails or gifts. 

 Sex, gender or sexual orientation-related comments, slurs, jokes,
remarks or epithets. 

 Leering, obscene or vulgar gestures or making sexual gestures.
 Displaying or distributing sexually suggestive or derogatory objects,

pictures, cartoons, or posters or any such items. 
 Impeding or blocking movement, unwelcome touching or assaulting

others. 
 Any sexual advances that are unwelcome as well as reprisals or

threats after a negative response to sexual advances. 
 Conduct or comments consistently targeted at one gender, even if

the content is not sexual. 

170.90 Retaliation. 

170.91  The District values its employees and has an affirmative duty to take reasonable 
steps to prevent and promptly correct discriminatory and harassing conduct. Accordingly, the 
District will not retaliate against any employee who files a good faith complaint because of their 
belief that someone or they themselves were subjected to workplace discrimination or harassment 
in violation of the DHR Policy. 

170.92  As used in this policy, retaliation is defined as any adverse employment action 

Item 4.6



KFPD EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
Policy #170 - "Discrimination, Harassment, and Retaliation Prevention" 

8

taken against an employee because the employee engaged in activity protected under this policy. 
“Protected activities” may include, but are not limited to, reporting or assisting in reporting 
suspected violations of this policy and/or cooperating in investigations or proceedings arising out 
of a violation of this policy. 

170.93  An “adverse employment action” is conduct or an action that materially affects the 
terms and conditions of the employee’s employment status or is reasonably likely to deter the 
employee from engaging in protected activity. Even actions that do not result in a direct loss of 
compensation may be regarded as an adverse employment action when considered in the totality 
of the circumstances. 

170.94  Examples of retaliation under this policy include but are not limited to: demotion; 
suspension; reduction in pay; denial of a merit salary increase; failure to hire or consider for hire; 
refusing to promote or consider for promotion because of reporting a violation of this policy; 
harassing another employee for filing a complaint; denying employment opportunities because of 
making a complaint or for cooperating in an investigation; changing someone’s work assignments 
for identifying harassment or other forms of discrimination in the workplace; treating people 
differently such as denying an accommodation; or not talking to an employee when otherwise 
required by job duties, or otherwise excluding the employee from job-related activities because of 
engagement in activities protected under this policy. 

170.51  Whatever action is taken against the harasser will be made known to the employee 
lodging the complaint, and appropriate action will be taken to remedy any loss to the employee 
resulting from the harassment.  Retaliation against anyone filing a complaint will not be permitted 
or tolerated. 

170.60   Employees are encouraged to immediately report any incident of harassment so that 
complaints can be quickly and fairly resolved. 

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Tab stops:  1", Left

Item 4.6



KFPD EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
Policy #180 - "Complaint and Investigation Procedures" 

10

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 

POLICY TITLE: Complaint and Investigation Procedures 
POLICY NUMBER:  180 

180.10   The District shall take an affirmative role to protect its employees from discrimination, 
harassment, and retaliation. The District will take all reasonable efforts to resolve complaints 
internally. 

180.20   Any employee or applicant who experiences or witnesses behavior that they believe 
violates the Discrimination, Harassment, and Retaliation Prevention Policy (“DHR Policy”) 
contained in Policy No. 170 is encouraged to immediately tell the offending individual that the 
behavior is inappropriate and, if they feel comfortable doing so, to tell the offending individual to 
stop the behavior. 

180.30   The District maintains the following procedures and guidelines when addressing potential 
violations of the DHR Policy. All employees, including supervisors and managers, are expected 
to abide by the procedures and guidelines set forth below. 

1. Identify the offensive behavior to the offending employee or other person and request that
the behavior cease.

2. Report the offensive behavior either orally or in writing to the employee’s supervisor,
manager, or the General Manager. Any manager or supervisor who receives a complaint
of harassment or discrimination must immediately report the complaint to the General
Manager. Supervisors or managers who learn of any potential violation of this policy are
required to immediately report the matter to the General Manager, their designee, or the
President of the Board of Directors, and must follow that individual’s instructions as to
how best to proceed.

a) Written complaints may be made using the Complaint Form contained in Policy
No. 180.60.

b) If the employee directly reports to the alleged offender, the employee should report
the conduct to any other supervisor, manager, or the President of the Board of
Directors.

3. The General Manager, their designee, or an authorized representative of the District will
promptly look into the facts and circumstances of any alleged violation, as appropriate.

Item 4.7



KFPD EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
Policy #180 - "Complaint and Investigation Procedures" 

10

4. The District shall initiate an investigation where it has reason to believe that conduct in
violation of this policy has occurred. All investigations will be timely, thorough, fair, and
completed by qualified personnel.

a) Even in the absence of a formal complaint, the District may initiate an investigation
where it has reason to believe that prohibited conduct under this policy has
occurred.

b) Anonymous complaints will also be investigated. The method will depend on the
details provided in the anonymous complaint. If the complaint is sufficiently
detailed, the investigation may be able to proceed in the same manner as any other
complaint. If the information is more general, the District may need to do an
environmental assessment or survey to try to determine if misconduct has occurred.

c) To the extent possible, the District will endeavor to keep the reporting of the
applicant or employee’s concerns confidential; however, complete confidentiality
cannot be guaranteed when it interferes with the District’s ability to fulfill its
obligations under this policy.

d) All employees are required to cooperate fully with any investigation. This includes,
but is not limited to, maintaining an appropriate level of discretion regarding the
investigation and disclosing any and all information that may be pertinent to the
investigation.

5. Upon completion of the investigation, if misconduct is substantiated, the District shall take
appropriate remedial action to prevent and correct misconduct and unlawful behavior, up
to and including formal discipline where warranted.

To submit a complaint or report of an alleged violation of the Discrimination, 
Harassment, and Retaliation Prevention Policy, you may contact your 

supervisor/manager, the General Manager or the President of the Board of Directors. 

[GENERAL MANAGER’S NAME] 
[E-MAIL ADDRESS] 

[WORK PHONE NUMBER] 

[BOARD PRESIDENT’S NAME] 
[E-MAIL ADDRESS] 

[WORK PHONE NUMBER] 

Item 4.7



KFPD EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
Policy #180 - "Complaint and Investigation Procedures" 

10

180.40   Filing External Complaints. 

Employees and applicants may file formal complaints of discrimination, harassment, or retaliation 
with the agencies listed below. Individuals who wish to pursue filing with these agencies should 
contact them directly to obtain further information about their processes and time limits. 

California Department of Fair Employment and Housing 
2218 Kausen Drive, Suite 100 
Elk Grove, CA 95758 
800-884-1684 (voice), 800-700-2320 (TTY) or California’s Relay Service at 711
contact.center@dfeh.ca.gov
https://www.dfeh.ca.gov

U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission 
450 Golden Gate Avenue 5 West,  
P.O Box 36025
San Francisco, CA 94102-3661
1-800-669-4000 or 510-735-8909 (Deaf/hard-of-hearing callers only)
http://www.eeoc.gov/employees

180.50   Preventative, Corrective, and Remedial Action 

180.51  The District shall take appropriate preventative, corrective, and remedial action(s), 
up to and including formal discipline, against any employee(s) when an investigation has found 
that misconduct prohibited by the DHR Policy has occurred. If discrimination, harassment, or 
retaliation, as outlined in this policy, has been found to have occurred, appropriate preventative, 
corrective, or remedial action(s) will be promptly taken, including but not limited to the initiation 
of disciplinary procedures. 

180.52  During the course of the investigation, the District may take interim relief measures 
as appropriate to ensure that any alleged harassment or discrimination does not continue, and to 
ensure that no retaliation occurs. Measures taken will be determined on a case-by-case basis 
depending on the specific circumstances of the complaint. Interim relief may include changing 
supervisory relationships, work locations, or reassigning or placing the accused party on paid 
administrative leave. The complaining party shall not be required to change work locations or 
assignments, however, such changes may be made at the complaining party’s request. 

180.53  In addition, preventative, corrective, or remedial action(s) may also include, but 
are not limited to, letters of reprimand, suspension, demotion, or termination. Additionally, 
depending on the nature of the violation, civil liability could be imposed on the violator as well as 
the District. 

Item 4.7



KFPD EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
Policy #180 - "Complaint and Investigation Procedures" 

10

180.60   Complaint Form 

COMPLAINT FORM 

COMPLAINANT INFORMATION 

NAME: ______________________________________________________________ 

DIVISION / UNIT: ______________________________________________________ 

OFFICE LOCATION: ___________________________________________________ 

WORK PHONE: _______________________________________________________ 

IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR: _____________________________________________ 

Please describe the conduct that you believe violates the Discrimination, Harassment, 
and Retaliation Prevention Policy. In your narrative, describe: (1) What happened to you; 
(2) Why you believe you are being discriminated, harassed, or retaliated against, including
the reason or evidence you have to support your belief, and; (3) When the acts of
discrimination, harassment, or retaliation occur (attach additional pages if needed). If you
require assistance with completing this form as a reasonable accommodation, please
contact the General Manager or their designee.

Item 4.7



KFPD EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
Policy #180 - "Complaint and Investigation Procedures" 

10

PERSON(S) ALLEGED TO HAVE VIOLATED THE POLICY 

Person #1 - Name: __________ Position: __________ Work Location: _________ 
Person #2 - Name: __________ Position: __________ Work Location: _________ 
Person #3 - Name: __________ Position: __________ Work Location: _________ 

PERSON(S) WITH INFORMATION/KNOWLEDGE OF THE ALLEGED INCIDENTS 

Witness #1 - Name: __________ Position: __________ Work Location: ________ 
Witness #2 - Name: __________ Position: __________ Work Location: ________ 
Witness #3 - Name: __________ Position: __________ Work Location: ________ 

HAVE YOU COMPLAINED TO ANYONE AT THE DISTRICT ABOUT THIS MATTER? 
If yes, explain the situation. When did you complain, to whom, and what was the result? 

Please submit to your supervisor/manager, the General Manager, or the President of 
the Board of Directors: 

[GENERAL MANAGER’S NAME] 
[E-MAIL ADDRESS] 

[WORK PHONE NUMBER] 

[BOARD PRESIDENT’S NAME] 
[E-MAIL ADDRESS] 

[WORK PHONE NUMBER] 

Item 4.7



KFPD EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
Policy #180 - "Affirmative ActionComplaint and Investigation Procedures" 

10

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 

POLICY TITLE: Affirmative ActionComplaint and Investigation Procedures 
POLICY NUMBER:  180 

180.10  It is the policy of the Kensington Fire Protection The District that there shall be no take an 
affirmative role to protect its employees from discrimination, harassment, and retaliation. The 
District will take all reasonable efforts to resolve complaints internally. 

180.20   based upon race, national origin, religion, sex, physical handicap, veteran's status, sexual 
orientation, or age in any  Any employee or applicant who experiences or witnesses behavior that 
they believe violates the Discrimination, Harassment, and Retaliation Prevention Policy (“DHR 
Policy”) contained in Policy No. 170 is encouraged to immediately tell the offending individual 
that the behavior is inappropriate and, if they feel comfortable doing so, to tell the offending 
individual to stop the behavior. 

180.30   The District maintains the following procedures and guidelines when addressing potential 
violations of the DHR Policy. All employees, including supervisors and managers, are expected 
to abide by the procedures and guidelines set forth below. 

1. Identify the offensive behavior to the offending employee or other person and request that
the behavior cease. 

2. Report the offensive behavior either orally or in writing to the employee’s supervisor,
manager, or the General Manager. Any manager or supervisor who receives a complaint 
of harassment or discrimination must immediately report the complaint to the General 
Manager. Supervisors or managers who learn of any potential violation of this policy are 
required to immediately report the matter to the General Manager, their designee, or the 
President of the Board of Directors, and must follow that individual’s instructions as to 
how best to proceed.  

a) Written complaints may be made using the Complaint Form contained in Policy
No. 180.60. 

b) If the employee directly reports to the alleged offender, the employee should report
the conduct to any other supervisor, manager, or the President of the Board of 
Directors. 

Item 4.7



KFPD EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
Policy #180 - "Affirmative ActionComplaint and Investigation Procedures" 

10

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

3. The General Manager, their designee, or an authorized representative of the District will
promptly look into the facts and circumstances of any alleged violation, as appropriate. 

4. The District shall initiate an investigation where it has reason to believe that conduct in
violation of this policy has occurred. All investigations will be timely, thorough, fair, and 
completed by qualified personnel. 

a) Even in the absence of a formal complaint, the District may initiate an investigation
where it has reason to believe that prohibited conduct under this policy has 
occurred.  

b) Anonymous complaints will also be investigated. The method will depend on the
details provided in the anonymous complaint. If the complaint is sufficiently 
detailed, the investigation may be able to proceed in the same manner as any other 
complaint. If the information is more general, the District may need to do an 
environmental assessment or survey to try to determine if misconduct has occurred. 

c) To the extent possible, the District will endeavor to keep the reporting of the
applicant or employee’s concerns confidential; however, complete confidentiality 
cannot be guaranteed when it interferes with the District’s ability to fulfill its 
obligations under this policy. 

d) All employees are required to cooperate fully with any investigation. This includes,
but is not limited to, maintaining an appropriate level of discretion regarding the 
investigation and disclosing any and all information that may be pertinent to the 
investigation.  

5. Upon completion of the investigation, if misconduct is substantiated, the District shall take
appropriate remedial action, to prevent and correct misconduct and unlawful behavior, up 
to and including recruitment, appointment, performance evaluation, promotion,formal 
discipline where warranted.  

To submit a complaint or report of an alleged violation of the granting of leaves, and 
Discrimination, Harassment, and Retaliation Prevention Policy, you may contact your 
supervisor/manager, the General Manager or the President of the Board of Directors. 

[GENERAL MANAGER’S NAME] 
[E-MAIL ADDRESS] 

[WORK PHONE NUMBER] 

[BOARD PRESIDENT’S NAME] 

Formatted: Font: Bold, Italic

Item 4.7



KFPD EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
Policy #180 - "Affirmative ActionComplaint and Investigation Procedures" 

10

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

[E-MAIL ADDRESS] 
[WORK PHONE NUMBER] 

180.40   Filing External Complaints. 

Employees and applicants may file formal complaints of discrimination, harassment, or retaliation 
with the agencies listed below. Individuals who wish to pursue filing with these agencies should 
contact them directly to obtain further information about their processes and time limits. 

California Department of Fair Employment and Housing 
2218 Kausen Drive, Suite 100 
Elk Grove, CA 95758 
800-884-1684 (voice), 800-700-2320 (TTY) or California’s Relay Service at 711
contact.center@dfeh.ca.gov 
https://www.dfeh.ca.gov 

U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission 
450 Golden Gate Avenue 5 West,  
P.O Box 36025
San Francisco, CA 94102-3661 
1-800-669-4000 or 510-735-8909 (Deaf/hard-of-hearing callers only)
http://www.eeoc.gov/employees 

180.50   Preventative, Corrective, and Remedial Action 

180.51  The District shall take appropriate preventative, corrective, and remedial action(s), 
up to and including formal discipline, against any employee(s) when an investigation has found 
that misconduct prohibited by the DHR Policy has occurred. If discrimination, harassment, or 
retaliation, as outlined in this policy, has been found to have occurred, appropriate preventative, 
corrective, or remedial action(s) will be promptly taken, including but not limited to the initiation 
of disciplinary or grievance actionprocedures. 

180.52  During the course of the investigation, the District may take interim relief measures 
as appropriate to ensure that any alleged harassment or discrimination does not continue, and to 
ensure that no retaliation occurs. Measures taken will be determined on a case-by-case basis 
depending on the specific circumstances of the complaint. Interim relief may include changing 
supervisory relationships, work locations, or reassigning or placing the accused party on paid 
administrative leave. The complaining party shall not be required to change work locations or 
assignments, however, such changes may be made at the complaining party’s request. 

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the
same style, Tab stops: Not at  -1" +  -0.5" +  0" +  0.5" +  1"
+  1.5" +  2" +  2.5" +  3" +  3.5" +  4"

Item 4.7



KFPD EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
Policy #180 - "Affirmative ActionComplaint and Investigation Procedures" 

10

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

180.53  In addition, preventative, corrective, or remedial action(s) may also include, but 
are not limited to, letters of reprimand, suspension, demotion, or termination. Additionally, 
depending on the nature of the violation, civil liability could be imposed on the violator as well as 
the District. 

180.60   Complaint Form 

COMPLAINT FORM 

COMPLAINANT INFORMATION 

NAME: ______________________________________________________________ 

DIVISION / UNIT: ______________________________________________________ 

OFFICE LOCATION: ___________________________________________________ 

WORK PHONE: _______________________________________________________ 

IMMEDIATE SUPERVISOR: _____________________________________________ 

Please describe the conduct that you believe violates the Discrimination, Harassment, 
and Retaliation Prevention Policy. In your narrative, describe: (1) What happened to you; 
(2) Why you believe you are being discriminated, harassed, or retaliated against, including
the reason or evidence you have to support your belief, and; (3) When the acts of 
discrimination, harassment, or retaliation occur (attach additional pages if needed). If you 
require assistance with completing this form as a reasonable accommodation, please 
contact the General Manager or their designee.  

Item 4.7



KFPD EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
Policy #180 - "Affirmative ActionComplaint and Investigation Procedures" 

10

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

PERSON(S) ALLEGED TO HAVE VIOLATED THE POLICY 

Person #1 - Name: __________ Position: __________ Work Location: _________ 
Person #2 - Name: __________ Position: __________ Work Location: _________ 
Person #3 - Name: __________ Position: __________ Work Location: _________ 

PERSON(S) WITH INFORMATION/KNOWLEDGE OF THE ALLEGED INCIDENTS 

Witness #1 - Name: __________ Position: __________ Work Location: ________ 
Witness #2 - Name: __________ Position: __________ Work Location: ________ 
Witness #3 - Name: __________ Position: __________ Work Location: ________ 

HAVE YOU COMPLAINED TO ANYONE AT THE DISTRICT ABOUT THIS MATTER? 
If yes, explain the situation. When did you complain, to whom, and what was the result? 

Please submit to your supervisor/manager, the General Manager, or the President of 

Item 4.7



KFPD EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
Policy #180 - "Affirmative ActionComplaint and Investigation Procedures" 

10

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman

the Board of Directors: 

[GENERAL MANAGER’S NAME] 
[E-MAIL ADDRESS] 

[WORK PHONE NUMBER] 

[BOARD PRESIDENT’S NAME] 
[E-MAIL ADDRESS] 

[WORK PHONE NUMBER] 

180.20  This policy contains two major commitments: 

180.21  To recognize both a moral and legal obligation to work toward a work force 
composition reflecting the mix of ethnic minorities and women in the labor markets from which 
the District draws its staff. 

180.22  To make a demonstrable and deliberate effort in hiring to solicit applications from 
minority and women candidates in all cases where their representation is below the labor force 
standard. 

Formatted: Font: 11 pt

Formatted: Don't add space between paragraphs of the
same style, Tab stops: Not at  -1" +  -0.5" +  0" +  0.5" +  1"
+  1.5" +  2" +  2.5" +  3" +  3.5" +  4"

Item 4.7



KFPD EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
Policy #185 - "Training Requirements" 

1

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 

POLICY TITLE: Training Requirements 
POLICY NUMBER:  185 

185.10   All District employees and elected or appointed officials are required to participate in 
sexual harassment and abusive conduct prevention training. The training will be aimed at 
increasing their understanding of, and preventing, workplace sexual harassment, as well as their 
role in creating an underlying culture of mutual respect in the workplace. 

185.20   The training will also cover abusive conduct, or workplace bullying, and other types of 
prohibited harassment, such as harassment based on gender identity, gender expression, and sexual 
orientation. Specific components of the training will include how to promptly and effectively 
respond to sexual harassment when it occurs, the effects of abusive conduct in the workplace, and 
ways to appropriately intervene if one witnesses behavior that is not in keeping with this policy. 
Employees will be trained on how to identify, investigate, report, and respond to unlawful 
harassment, discrimination, and retaliation in the workplace. 

185.30   At a minimum, all supervisory employees are required to take two hours of training under 
this section every two years.  

185.40   Non-supervisory employees are required to take one hour of training every two years. The 
District will make this training available to employees during regular working hours at no cost to 
the employee. Records of these training activities will be maintained in District files. 

Item 4.8



KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

POLICY # POLICY TITLE PAGE # 

100 Employee Status 1 
110 Vehicle Cost Reimbursement 2 
120 Educational Assistance 3 
130 Pay Periods 4 
131 Receipt of Gifts 4a 
140 Performance Evaluation 5 
141 Employee Records 5a 
150 Drug and Alcohol Abuse 6 
160 Use of Tobacco Products Within the District 7 
170 Discrimination, Harassment, and Retaliation Prevention 8-9
180 Complaint and Investigation Procedure 10 
185 Training Requirements 11 
190 Disciplinary Action 11-12
191 Internet, Email and Electronic Communications 13-14
200 Job Description –District Manager 15-21

Item 4.8



KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

POLICY # POLICY TITLE PAGE # 

100 Employee Status 1 
110 Vehicle Cost Reimbursement 2 
120 Educational Assistance 3 
130 Pay Periods 4 
131 Receipt of Gifts 4a 
140 Performance Evaluation 5 
141 Employee Records 5a 
150 Drug and Alcohol Abuse 6 
160 Use of Tobacco Products Within the District 7 
170 Discrimination, Harassment, and Retaliation PreventionHarassment
8-9
180 Complaint and Investigation ProcedureAffirmative Action 10 
185 Training Requirements 11 
190 Disciplinary Action 11-12
191 Internet, Email and Electronic Communications 13-14
200 Job Description –District Manager 15-21

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Item 4.8



Item 4.10 

Item for discussion and possible action by the KFPD Board (ACTION): 

The Emergency Preparedness Committee (EPC), following our 27 May 2020 meeting, 
recommends to the KFPD Board the following actions:  

1. Accept the Kensington Evacuation Research Project Final Report dated January 8, 2020
prepared by Stephen Wong, Ian Martin, and Jeremy Halpern and thank them for the
comprehensive work as well as their presentations to the public. (APPROVAL)

2. Accept the general findings and recommendations in the report and delegate the
further exploration of the recommendations to the EPC. This includes research and
meetings with relevant agencies including the General Managers and Chiefs of the KFPD
and KPPCSD; Contra Costa County, EBMUD, adjacent local cities and other public
agencies as determined; private entities such as the Sunset View Cemetery; and the
public. (APPROVAL)

3. Where feasible and at no or very low cost (under $5,000) to the District, implement and
document the procedures established for recommendations such as emergency gate
openings and signs at Sunset View Cemetery, EBMUD properties, and removable
bollards at Hilltop School and Windsor Avenue, red curb paintings at intersections and
along streets as may be recommended to the County in cooperation with the KPD, and
local neighborhood block meetings to register residents with CCC CWS and Nixle.
(APPROVAL)

4. Report back to the Board on the research and implementation issues on a regular basis
and as needed for policy direction, budgetary issues or other action by the KFPD board.
(APPROVAL)

Background: 

The Kensington Evacuation Research Project prepared January 8, 2020 analyzes street 
conditions and traffic patterns under differing scenarios to develop an actionable evacuation 
plan in the event of a major disaster. The report identifies 43 recommendations in key areas of 
Evacuation Plan Review, Field Survey, and Network Analysis. The recommendations include a 
wide range of complexity and potential cost, from policies, procedures and coordination with 
adjacent agencies to physical changes in traffic movement, parking and infrastructure 
improvements. Whereas some of the recommendation will be easier to implement and others 
not feasible or cost-prohibitive, the EPC feels that they all deserve serious consideration.  

We would like to move forward with the most feasible recommendations in advance of the 
2020 fire season. This is a multi-year project for many of the more complicated 
recommendations and especially those requiring public input and participation.  Some 
recommendations could move forward more quickly and it is recommended that they be 
implemented as soon as possible.  



ϭ

.(16,1*721�(9$&8$7,21�5(6($5&+�352-(&7

(;(&87,9(�6800$5<

6WHSKHQ�:RQJ

,DQ�0DUWLQ

-HUHP\�+DOSHUQ

8QLYHUVLW\�RI�&DOLIRUQLD��%HUNHOH\

)HEUXDU\��������

Item 4.10



Ϯ

2YHUYLHZ RI�7DVNV

7KH�FRPPXQLW\�RI�.HQVLQJWRQ��&DOLIRUQLD�LQ�&RQWUD�&RVWD�&RXQW\�IDFHV�PXOWLSOH�ULVNV�IURP�
QDWXUDO�KD]DUGV�GXH�WR�LWV�XQLTXH�JHRJUDSK\��HVSHFLDOO\�IURP�ZLOGILUHV�DQG�HDUWKTXDNHV��
&RQVHTXHQWO\��WKH�.HQVLQJWRQ�)LUH�%RDUG�DQG�FRPPXQLW\�PHPEHUV�UHTXHVWHG�D�UHVHDUFK�
SURMHFW�WR�EHJLQ�EXLOGLQJ�D�FRPPXQLW\�HYDFXDWLRQ�SODQ��7KH�ILQDO�UHSRUW�GHWDLOV�DOO�DVSHFWV�
RI�WKH�UHVHDUFK�SURMHFW�DQG�FUHDWHV�D�VHULHV�RI�UHFRPPHQGDWLRQV�IRU�WKH�FRPPXQLW\�RI�
.HQVLQJWRQ� WR� FRQVLGHU�ZKHQ�EXLOGLQJ�D�ZLOGILUH�HYDFXDWLRQ�SODQ� DQG�D� WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�
UHVSRQVH�VWUDWHJ\��7KH�UHSRUW�

'HILQHV�WKH�HYDFXDWLRQ�SUREOHP�VWDWHPHQW�IRU�.HQVLQJWRQ�
6XPPDUL]HV�UHTXHVWV�IRU�REWDLQLQJ�RIILFLDO�ULJKW�RI�ZD\�PDSV�
5HYLHZV�ORFDO�HPHUJHQF\�DQG�HYDFXDWLRQ�SUHSDUHGQHVV�JXLGHV�DQG�SODQV�
5HYLHZV�DFDGHPLF�OLWHUDWXUH�RQ�ZLOGILUH�HYDFXDWLRQV�
'RFXPHQWV�D�GDWD�SURWRFRO�IRU�D�ILHOG�VXUYH\�RI�.HQVLQJWRQ�VWUHHW�FRQGLWLRQV�
$QDO\]HV�VWUHHW�FRQGLWLRQ�GDWD�IURP�WKH�ILHOG�VXUYH\�RI�.HQVLQJWRQ�VWUHHWV�
3URYLGHV�PHWKRGRORJ\�DQG�UHVXOWV�IRU�D�QHWZRUN�DQDO\VLV�RI�.HQVLQJWRQ�
,GHQWLILHV�FULWLFDO�LQWHUVHFWLRQV��URDG�OLQNV��DQG�JDWKHULQJ�SRLQWV�IRU�HYDFXDWLRQV�
3URYLGHV�UHFRPPHQGDWLRQV�IRU�GHYHORSLQJ�D�.HQVLQJWRQ�HYDFXDWLRQ�SODQ�

7KHVH�WDVNV�SURYLGH�WKH�VWDUWLQJ�SRLQW�IRU�WKH�FRPPXQLW\�RI�.HQVLQJWRQ�WR�GHYHORS�DQ�
DFWLRQDEOH�HYDFXDWLRQ�SODQ�LQ�WKH�HYHQW�RI�D�PDMRU�GLVDVWHU��:H�KLJKOLJKW�WKH�WZR�SULPDU\�
GDWD�EDVHG�WDVNV�IURP�WKH�UHSRUW�LQ�WKH�IROORZLQJ�VHFWLRQV�RI�WKLV�H[HFXWLYH�VXPPDU\�

)LHOG�6XUYH\�RI�.HQVLQJWRQ�6WUHHWV

,Q�)DOO�������ZH�FRQGXFWHG�D� ILHOG�VXUYH\�RI�.HQVLQJWRQ�VWUHHW�FRQGLWLRQV� WR�FDSWXUH�D�
´ZRUVW�FDVHµ� VFHQDULR� IRU� D� ZLOGILUH� HYDFXDWLRQ�� :H� GHWHUPLQHG� WKDW� D� ´ZRUVW�FDVHµ�
VFHQDULR�ZRXOG�RFFXU�DW�QLJKW�ZKHQ�PRVW�RI�WKH�SRSXODWLRQ�ZRXOG�EH�KRPH�DQG�SDUNLQJ�
RFFXSDQF\�DORQJ�VWUHHWV�ZRXOG�EH�KLJKHVW��3RSXODWLRQV�ZRXOG�DOVR�EH KLJKHU�GXULQJ�WKH�
ZHHNGD\��DV�RSSRVHG�WR�D�ZHHNHQG��GXH�WR�ZHHNHQG�WUDYHO�DQG�YDFDWLRQV��&RQVHTXHQWO\��
ZH�FROOHFWHG�GDWD�RQ�ZHHNGD\V��0RQGD\�WKURXJK�7KXUVGD\��EHWZHHQ�WKH�KRXUV�RI������
DQG�����$0�RU�EHWZHHQ�WKH�KRXUV�RI������DQG������30��$�ILQDO�GD\�RI�FROOHFWLRQ�RFFXUUHG�
GXULQJ�WKH�GD\WLPH�WR�TXDOLWDWLYHO\�DVVHVV�SDWKV�DQG�VWDLUV�DQG�JDWKHU�DGGLWLRQDO�YLVXDO�
HYLGHQFH�RI�NH\�ERWWOHQHFNV��7KH�ILHOG�VXUYH\�FROOHFWHG�WKH�IROORZLQJ�GDWD�

&HQWHUOLQH�PDUNLQJV
0LQLPXP�ODQH�ZLGWK
3HUFHQW�RI�VWUHHW�OHQJWK�XQGHU����IHHW�ZLGH
3HUFHQW�RI�VWUHHW�OHQJWK�FRQWDLQLQJ�SDUNHG�YHKLFOHV
9HJHWDWLRQ��ERWK�WUHH�FRYHU�DQG�XQGHUEUXVK�

Item 4.10



ϯ

5RDGZD\�JUDGHV
,QWHUVHFWLRQ�LQIRUPDWLRQ
:DONLQJ�SDWK�FRQGLWLRQV

.H\�UHVXOWV�IURP�WKH�ILHOG�VXUYH\�RI�.HQVLQJWRQ�VWUHHWV�LQFOXGHG�

0LQLPDO�FHQWHUOLQH�PDUNLQJV�DFURVV�WKH�FRPPXQLW\�EXW�VRPH�GHVLJQDWHG�WKURXJK�
URXWHV�WKDW�UHOLHG�RQ�PXOWLSOH�URDGV�
([WUHPHO\�QDUURZ�VWUHHWV��PHDVXUHG�DW�WKH�QDUURZHVW�SLQFK�SRLQW��RI�XQGHU�VHYHQ�
IHHW�RQ�PDQ\�VHJPHQWV��SDUWLFXODUO\�LQ�WKH�VRXWKHDVW�TXDGUDQW�RI�.HQVLQJWRQ�
0DMRULW\�RI�VWUHHWV�LQ�.HQVLQJWRQ�ZLWK�D�PLQLPXP�ODQH�ZLGWK�XQGHU�WHQ�IHHW��FDXVHG�
E\� VHYHUDO� LVVXHV� LQFOXGLQJ�� SDUNHG� YHKLFOHV�� GHHS� JXWWHUV�� QRQ�QDYLJDEOH�
GULYHZD\V��DQG�QDUURZ�ULJKWV�RI�ZD\��DQG�RWKHU�REVWUXFWLRQV��VXFK�DV�SROHV��
1HDUO\�DOO�VWUHHW�VHJPHQWV�ZLWK�DW�OHDVW�RQH�SLQFK�SRLQW�DQG�D�VLJQLILFDQW�QXPEHU�
RI� VWUHHWV�ZLWK�PRUH� WKDQ�����RI� WKHLU� OHQJWK� DV�SLQFK�SRLQWV� �LQFOXGLQJ�PDMRU�
WKURXJK�VWUHHWV��
6LJQLILFDQW�SRUWLRQ�RI�.HQVLQJWRQ�VWUHHWV�ZLWK�RYHU�����RI�WKH�OHQJWK�RFFXSLHG�E\�
SDUNHG�YHKLFOHV��ZKLFK� LV� DQ� LQGLUHFW�PHDVXUH�RI�SDUNLQJ�GHPDQG�DQG�SRWHQWLDO�
KD]DUGV�
+LJK� YHJHWDWLRQ� OHYHOV� LQ� WKH� VRXWKZHVW� DQG� VRXWKHDVW� SDUW� RI� .HQVLQJWRQ� DQG�
DORQJ�PDMRU�URXWHV�WKDW�FRXOG�EORFN�H[LWV�RU�OHDG�WR�DGGLWLRQDO�ILUH�GDQJHU�ZKLOH�
HYDFXDWLQJ�
6WHHS�LQFOLQHV��LQFOXGLQJ�DORQJ�VRPH�URXWHV�ZLWK�FHQWHUOLQH�PDUNLQJV�DQG�PLQLPDO�
SLQFK�SRLQWV��ZKLFK�FRXOG�VORZ�HYDFXDWLRQV�
0LQLPDO� WUDIILF� FRQWUROV� DW� LQWHUVHFWLRQV� DQG� XQFRQYHQWLRQDO� LQWHUVHFWLRQV� WKDW�
FRXOG�EH�KD]DUGRXV�GXULQJ�DQ�HYDFXDWLRQ�
0LQLPDO�VLJQDJH�RI�ZDONLQJ�SDWKV�DQG�YDU\LQJ�FRQGLWLRQV�RI�SDWKV�ZLWK�WKH�KLJKHVW�
TXDOLW\�RQHV�LQ�WKH�VRXWKZHVW�TXDGUDQW�DQG�WKH�PRVW�RYHUJURZQ�RU�XQPDLQWDLQHG�
LQ�WKH�VRXWKHDVW�DQG�QRUWKHDVW�TXDGUDQWV��LQGLFDWLQJ�SRWHQWLDO�HYDFXDWLRQ�GDQJHU�
)RXU�DGGLWLRQDO�FRQQHFWLRQV�LGHQWLILHG�� 6XQVHW�9LHZ�&HPHWHU\��D�FRQQHFWLRQ�IURP�
WKH�FRPPXQLW\�FHQWHU� WR� WKH�VFKRRO��D�FRQQHFWLRQ� IURP�:LQGVRU�$YHQXH�WR�WKH�
FRPPXQLW\� FHQWHU�� DQG� DQ� (DVW� %D\�0XQLFLSDO�8WLOLW\�'LVWULFW� DFFHVV� URDG� DORQJ�
6XPPLW�5HVHUYRLU�� WKDW�ZRXOG�UHTXLUH�UHPRYDO�RI�JDWHV�RU�EROODUGV�IRU�HYDFXDWLRQ�
DFFHVV�

1HWZRUN�$QDO\VLV

:H� DOVR� FRQGXFWHG� D� QHWZRUN� DQDO\VLV� RI� .HQVLQJWRQ� VWUHHWV� WR� XQFRYHU� KLJKO\� XVHG�
URXWHV��SUREOHPDWLF�OLQNV��DQG�EXV\�LQWHUVHFWLRQV� $�FORVHVW�IDFLOLW\�PRGHO�ZDV�XVHG�ZLWK�
WKH�1HWZRUN�$QDO\VW�WRRO�LQ�$UF*,6��7KH�PRGHO�VSDWLDOO\�DVVLJQV�´LQFLGHQWVµ�WR�WKH�FORVHVW�
´IDFLOLWLHVµ�YLD�WKH�VKRUWHVW�URXWH��,Q�WKLV�VFHQDULR��WKH�LQFLGHQWV�DUH�WKH�QRGHV�VLPXODWLQJ�

Item 4.10



ϰ

.HQVLQJWRQ·V�SRSXODWLRQ�DQG�WKH�IDFLOLWLHV�DUH�WKH�GHVLJQDWHG�H[LW�URXWHV��1RGHV��LQFOXGLQJ�
LQWHUVHFWLRQV�DQG�GHDG�HQGV��ZHUH�XVHG�DV�RULJLQ�SRLQWV��:H�FRQGXFWHG�QLQH�VFHQDULRV�
ZLWK�GLIIHUHQW�DVVXPSWLRQV�

/RFDO�DSSURDFK��DOO�H[LWV�DW�.HQVLQJWRQ�ERUGHUV��
5HJLRQDO�DSSURDFK��IRXU�FKRVHQ�H[LWV�LQ�(O�&HUULWR�DQG�%HUNHOH\��
1RUWKHUQ�ZLOGILUH��QR�QRUWKHUQ�H[LWV��
6RXWKHUQ�ZLOGILUH��QR�VRXWKHUQ�H[LWV��
&HPHWHU\�DFFHVV��DQG
1R�FHPHWHU\�DFFHVV�

:H�IRXQG�VHYHUDO�NH\�UHVXOWV�IURP�WKH�QHWZRUN�DQDO\VLV�DFURVV�WKH�QLQH�VFHQDULRV�

8QGHU� VKRUWHVW�SDWK� FRQGLWLRQV�� HYDFXHHV� VRPHWLPHV� RSWHG� WR� WUDYHO� XSKLOO� RU�
WRZDUGV�WKH�ZLOGODQG�XUEDQ�LQWHUIDFH��ZKLFK�ZRXOG�FUHDWH�H[WHQVLYH�FRQIOLFWV�DQG�
SRWHQWLDO�ILUH�ULVNV�
8QGHU�VKRUWHVW�SDWK�FRQGLWLRQV��HYDFXHHV� WRRN� IDVWHU�EXW�QDUURZ�URDGV��FDXVLQJ�
KLJK�FRQJHVWLRQ�SDUWLFXODUO\� LQ� WKH�VRXWKHDVW�TXDGUDQW�DQG�RQ�NH\� LQWHUVHFWLRQV�
WKDW�GR�QRW�KDYH�DQ\�WUDIILF�FRQWURO�
8QGHU� D� UHJLRQDO� DQDO\VLV�� VLJQLILFDQW� TXHXLQJ� RI� YHKLFOHV� DORQJ� PDMRU� URDGV�
�LQFOXGLQJ�WKRVH�LQ�RWKHU�MXULVGLFWLRQV��ZRXOG�OHDG�WR�KHDY\�FRQJHVWLRQ�
8QGHU�D�UHJLRQDO�DQDO\VLV�ZLWK�WKH�FHPHWHU\�RSHQ��D�VLJQLILFDQW�DPRXQW�RI�HYDFXHHV�
LQ�WKH�PLGGOH�RI�.HQVLQJWRQ������RYHUDOO��ZRXOG�FKRRVH�WR�HYDFXDWH�WKURXJK�WKH�
FHPHWHU\�
)RU�ERWK�ILUH�GLUHFWLRQV�ZLWK�WKH�FHPHWHU\�RSHQ��D�VLJQLILFDQW�QXPEHU�RI�HYDFXHHV�
ZRXOG�URXWH�WKURXJK�WKH�FHPHWHU\��ZKLFK�ZRXOG�LQFUHDVH�ZLWK�PRUH�EORFNHG�HJUHVV�
SRLQWV�
)RU� ERWK� ILUH� GLUHFWLRQV�� VPDOOHU� URDGV� RIWHQ� H[SHULHQFHG� D� UDSLG� LQFUHDVH� LQ�
HYDFXHHV�VLQFH�WKHLU�QHDUHVW�HJUHVV�ZDV�HOLPLQDWHG�
&RQVLVWHQWO\� DFURVV� VFHQDULRV�� $UOLQJWRQ� $YHQXH�� *UL]]O\� 3HDN� %RXOHYDUG�� DQG�
&ROXVD�$YHQXH�ZHUH�NH\�URXWHV�IRU�HYDFXHHV�

.H\�5HFRPPHQGDWLRQV

%DVHG�RQ�WKH�UHVXOWV�IURP�WKH�ILHOG�VXUYH\�DQG�QHWZRUN�DQDO\VLV��DORQJ�ZLWK�UHYLHZ�RI�ORFDO�
HYDFXDWLRQ� SODQV� DQG� ZLOGILUH� HYDFXDWLRQ� OLWHUDWXUH�� ZH� GHYHORSHG� D� VHULHV� RI�
UHFRPPHQGDWLRQV�IRU�.HQVLQJWRQ�

/LWHUDWXUH�DQG�(YDFXDWLRQ�3ODQ�5HYLHZ�5HFRPPHQGDWLRQV

.HQVLQJWRQ� VKRXOG� HQVXUH� WKDW� HPHUJHQF\� UHVSRQVH� SODQV�� HYDFXDWLRQ� SODQV��
UHHQWU\�SODQV��SUHSDUHGQHVV�JXLGHV��DQG�ILUH�VXSSUHVVLRQ�DFWLYLW\�JXLGHV�DUH�IUHH�
DQG�HDVLO\�DFFHVVLEOH�WR�WKH�SXEOLF�RQOLQH�DQG�LQ�SULQW�

Item 4.10



ϱ

2IILFLDOV�VKRXOG�FRQVLGHU�GHYHORSLQJ� MRLQW�HYDFXDWLRQ�DQG�HPHUJHQF\�SODQV�ZLWK�
QHLJKERULQJ�FRPPXQLWLHV��VSHFLILFDOO\�(O�&HUULWR�DQG�%HUNHOH\��3ODQV�QHHG�WR�VWDWH�
KRZ�HYDFXHHV�IURP�.HQVLQJWRQ�PD\�LPSDFW�WKRVH�MXULVGLFWLRQV�
.HQVLQJWRQ�VKRXOG�GHYHORS�D�FDPSDLJQ�WKDW�HQFRXUDJHV�UHVLGHQWV�WR�VLJQ�XS�IRU�
HPHUJHQF\� DOHUWV� IRU� ERWK� &RQWUD� &RVWD� DQG� $ODPHGD� FRXQWLHV�� 7KLV� FDPSDLJQ�
VKRXOG� DWWHPSW� WR� UHDFK� D� FULWLFDO� PDVV� RI� UHJLVWHUHG� XVHUV� WR� HQVXUH� WKDW�
LQIRUPDWLRQ�LV�ZLGHO\�GLVWULEXWHG�
.HQVLQJWRQ�RIILFLDOV�VKRXOG�EH�SURDFWLYH�LQ�LVVXLQJ�HYDFXDWLRQ�RUGHUV WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�
HYDFXHHV�KDYH�WLPH�WR�OHDYH�
0DQGDWRU\� HYDFXDWLRQ� RUGHUV� DQG� ZLOGILUH� LQIRUPDWLRQ� VKRXOG� EH� GLVSHUVHG�
FRQVLVWHQWO\� DFURVV� PXOWLSOH� SODWIRUPV� WR� LQFUHDVH� NQRZOHGJH� DQG� UHGXFH�
FRQIXVLRQV�DQG�UXPRUV�
.HQVLQJWRQ� VKRXOG� FRQVLGHU� VXSSOHPHQWLQJ� RIILFLDO� RUGHUV� ZLWK� LQIRUPDWLRQ� WR�
&RPPXQLW\�(PHUJHQF\�5HVSRQVH�7HDPV��&(57V��DQG�QHLJKERUKRRG�EDVHG�JURXSV�
WR�HQFRXUDJH�HYDFXDWLRQV�

)LHOG�6XUYH\�5HFRPPHQGDWLRQV

)LUVW�UHVSRQGHUV�VKRXOG�LGHQWLI\�XSKLOO�URXWHV�IRU�HPHUJHQF\�YHKLFOHV�WKDW�PLQLPL]H�
FRQIOLFWV ZLWK�GRZQKLOO�WUDIILF�
.HQVLQJWRQ�VKRXOG�FRQVLGHU�UHGXFLQJ�YHJHWDWLRQ�ZKHUH�SRVVLEOH�DORQJ�PDMRU�
HYDFXDWLRQ�URXWHV�
.HQVLQJWRQ�VKRXOG�H[DPLQH�WKH�SRWHQWLDO�IRU�HPHUJHQF\�SHUVRQQHO�WR�UHPRYH�
EROODUGV�E\�.HQVLQJWRQ�(OHPHQWDU\�6FKRRO�
(PHUJHQF\�SHUVRQQHO�VKRXOG�FRQVLGHU�XVLQJ�WKH�(%08'�DFFHVV�URDG�DW�6XPPLW�
5HVHUYRLU�DV�DQ�DOWHUQDWH�URXWH�IRU�HPHUJHQF\�YHKLFOHV��,Q�H[WUHPH�FLUFXPVWDQFHV��
WKH�(%08'�DFFHVV�URDG�FRXOG�EH�XVHG�WR�HYDFXDWH�YHKLFOHV�
2IILFLDOV�VKRXOG�ZRUN�ZLWK�&RQWUD�&RVWD�FRXQW\�WR�IXUWKHU�HVWDEOLVK�´FOHDU�]RQHVµ�
DW�LQWHUVHFWLRQV�WR�UHGXFH�FRQJHVWLRQ�DQG�LPSURYH�WXUQLQJ�DELOLW\�RI�YHKLFOHV�
2IILFLDOV�VKRXOG�LQYHVWLJDWH�DOWHUQDWH�JXWWHU�GHVLJQV�WKDW�FRXOG�HQDEOH�JUHDWHU�
ULJKW�RI�ZD\�ZLGWK��SDUWLFXODUO\�IRU�LQVWDOODWLRQ�LQ�WKH�VRXWKHDVW�TXDGUDQW�DORQJ�
VHJPHQWV�RI�%HORLW��&DPEULGJH��&ROXPELD��7ULQLW\��DQG�:LOODPHWWH�$YHQXHV�
.HQVLQJWRQ�DQG�RU�QHLJKERUKRRG�JURXSV�VKRXOG�DGG�FOHDUO\�YLVLEOH�VLJQDJH�DW�
ERWK�HQGV�RI�HDFK�VHJPHQW�RI�WKH�SDWKZD\�QHWZRUN��DQG�YHJHWDWLRQ�DORQJ�WKH�
SDWKV�VKRXOG�EH�PDQDJHG�WR�DOORZ�VDIH�SDVVDJH�GXULQJ�DQ�HPHUJHQF\�
.HQVLQJWRQ�VKRXOG�LPSURYH�ZD\ILQGLQJ�UHJDUGLQJ�HYDFXDWLRQ�URXWHV�DQG�
JDWKHULQJ�SRLQWV�

Item 4.10



ϲ

1HWZRUN�$QDO\VLV�5HFRPPHQGDWLRQV

.HQVLQJWRQ�VKRXOG�FRQVLGHU�GHVLJQDWLQJ�LGHQWLILHG�URDG�FRPELQDWLRQV�DV�SULPDU\�
HYDFXDWLRQ�URXWHV�IRU�ZLOGILUHV��VHH�UHSRUW�IRU�UHFRPPHQGHG�URXWHV��
)LUH�� SROLFH�� DQG�RU� FRPPXQLW\� RIILFLDOV� VKRXOG� KDYH� DFFHVV� WR� WKH� 6XQVHW� 9LHZ�
&HPHWHU\�JDWH��2IILFLDOV�QHHG�WR�FUHDWH�DQ�DUUDQJHPHQW�ZLWK�FHPHWHU\�SHUVRQQHO�
WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�WKH�JDWH�FDQ�EH�RSHQHG�DW�DQ\�WLPH�
.HQVLQJWRQ�VKRXOG�FRQVLGHU�LPSURYLQJ�6XQVHW�'ULYH�DQG�WKH�QHDUE\�DUHD��
HVSHFLDOO\�LI�.HQVLQJWRQ�LQWHQGV�WR�XVH�WKH�FHPHWHU\�IRU�HYDFXDWLRQ�
.HQVLQJWRQ�VKRXOG�FRQVLGHU�GHSOR\LQJ�WUDIILF�FRRUGLQDWRUV�DW�NH\�LQWHUVHFWLRQV�WR�
IDFLOLWDWH�PRUH�HIILFLHQW�WUDIILF�IORZ��7KH\�VKRXOG�KDYH�D�V\VWHP�WR�FRPPXQLFDWH�
ZLWK�HDFK�RWKHU�DQG�FHQWUDO�FRPPDQG�
.HQVLQJWRQ�RIILFLDOV�VKRXOG�FRQVLGHU�LQVWLWXWLQJ�RQH�ZD\�GLUHFWLRQV��HLWKHU�DOO�WKH�
WLPH�RU�RQO\�UHG�IODJ�ZDUQLQJ�GD\V��DORQJ�URDGV�SDUWLFXODUO\�LQ�WKH�VRXWKHDVW�
TXDGUDQW��3DUNLQJ�UHVWULFWLRQV�DW�VRPH�SLQFK�SRLQWV�PD\�DOVR�EH�QHFHVVDU\��
SDUWLFXODUO\�IRU�URDGV�WKDW�FRXOG�EH�ELGLUHFWLRQDO�
,Q�WKH�FDVH�RI�D�ZLOGILUH��UHJDUGOHVV�RI�GLUHFWLRQDOLW\���.HQVLQJWRQ�VKRXOG�HVWDEOLVK�
VWURQJ�FRRUGLQDWLRQ�ZLWK�(O�&HUULWR�UHJDUGLQJ�WUDIILF�VXSHUYLVLRQ�DQG�GLUHFWLRQ�DW�
WKH�LQWHUVHFWLRQ�RI�)DLUPRXQW�$YHQXH�DQG�&ROXVD�$YHQXH��RU�ZRUN�ZLWK�(O�&HUULWR�
WR�GHILQH�DOWHUQDWH�HDVW�ZHVW�URXWHV�

&RQFOXVLRQ

2YHUDOO��.HQVLQJWRQ�VKRXOG�FRQVLGHU�WKH�IROORZLQJ�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�FKDQJHV�WR�LPSURYH�
HYDFXDWLRQ�RXWFRPHV��UHGXFH�FRQJHVWLRQ��DQG�LPSURYH�IORZ�WKURXJK�WKH�FRPPXQLW\�

5HPRYLQJ�VRPH�RQ�VWUHHW�SDUNLQJ�DQG�RU�UHVWULFWLQJ�SDUNLQJ�GXULQJ�UHG�IODJ�GD\V��
SDUWLFXODUO\�RQ�VXJJHVWHG�HYDFXDWLRQ�URXWHV�DQG�URDGV�ZLWK�HQRXJK�ZLGWK�IRU�WZR�
ODQHV�
'HVLJQDWLQJ�VRPH�YHU\�QDUURZ�URDGV�DV�RQH�ZD\�WUDIILF�SHUPDQHQWO\�RU�IRU�UHG�
IODJ�GD\V��SDUWLFXODUO\�RQ�KLJKO\�LPSDFWHG�OLQNV�
,PSURYLQJ�LQWHUVHFWLRQ�VLJQDJH�ZLWK�\LHOG�VLJQV�DV�DSSURSULDWH�WR�LPSURYH�IORZ�
WKURXJK�WKH�LQWHUVHFWLRQ�DQG�VHW�SUHFHGHQW�WR�HYDFXDWLRQ�URXWHV�
5HPRYLQJ�VHYHUDO�VSDFHV�RI�SDUNLQJ�QHDU�WLJKW��XQFRQYHQWLRQDO��DQG�RU�FULWLFDO�
LQWHUVHFWLRQV�WR�LPSURYH�WXUQLQJ�UDGLL�DQG�VHW�VWDJLQJ�DUHDV�IRU�ILUVW�UHVSRQGHUV�
&RQVLGHULQJ�VRPH�WZR�ZD\�VWUHHWV�DV�VLQJOH�GLUHFWLRQ�GRZQKLOO�LQ�DQ�HYDFXDWLRQ�
�H�J���%HUNHOH\�3DUN�%OYG��&RYHQWU\�5G��0RHVHU�/Q��6XQVHW�'U��DOO�URDGV�ZLWKLQ�WKH�
FHPHWHU\���DQG
(QFRXUDJLQJ�UHVLGHQWV�WR�SDUN�YHKLFOHV�LQ�GULYHZD\V�RU�DV�IDU�RII�WKH�VWUHHW�DV�
SRVVLEOH�EHIRUH�SRWHQWLDO�HPHUJHQFLHV�

Item 4.10



Item 6 

EL CERRITO-KENSINGTON FIRE DEPARTMENT 
10900 San Pablo Avenue  El Cerrito  CA  94530 

(510) 215-4450  FAX (510) 232-4917  
www.el-cerrito.org 

DATE: June 5, 2020 

TO: Kensington Fire Protection District Board Members 

FROM: Michael Pigoni: Fire Chief   

RE: Fire Chief’s Report for June 2020 Board Meeting 

Run Reports 
There were 31 calls for service that occurred during the month of May in the community of Kensington which 
is 9 more than the previous month when the Department experienced a drastic decrease. The increase in 
medicals plus two structure fires added to these totals. During this same time, Engine 165 responded to a total 
of 44 calls in all the El Cerrito/Kensington districts which is an increase of 5 incidents over the number of calls 
from last month.  The “Incident Log” included in the Board packets will provided more details on the dates, 
times, locations, and incident types for these calls. The next update discusses possible reasons for these drastic 
decreases in calls.  

Structure Fires 
On May 12th, the Fire Department responded to a reported structure fire in the 200 block of Trinity Avenue. In 
addition to the El Cerrito/Kensington engines, resources responded from Berkeley and Richmond to assist. 
Fortunately upon arrival, crews were informed that the fire had occurred in the garage but was now out. Upon 
investigating it was discovered that one of the residents had emptied out an ash tray into a garbage can in the 
garage that also contained some dry leaves. The fire was contained to the trash can and a throw rug that it was 
sitting on.  

On May 25th, there was another reported structure fire in the 200 block of Cambridge Avenue. Again, in 
addition to the El Cerrito/Kensington engines, resources from Berkeley and Richmond responded to assist. 
Upon arrival, the fire was located outside the structure in the back yard where the resident had lit their BBQ but 
had not taken of the grill cover all the way off. When the cover caught fire, it also melted the propane hose to 
the burners. The fire had been extinguished by the home owner, but the gas was still leaking. Crews isolated the 
propane tank and insured there was no extension of the fire into the structure.  

Corona Virus Update 
The Corona Virus or COVID-19 pandemic continues to present challenges for the Fire Department. We 
continue to practice all the County recommended and mandated protocols as well as we have started morning 
health screening for all our personnel in which when they arrive at work and every morning while on duty they 
monitor their temperature as well as complete a health screening questionnaire.  

Vegetation Management 
The Fire Prevention Officer has completed his first round of inspections in Kensington. This year there was a 
drastic improvement in the number of violations with only 90 parcels being issued violations versus the 300 
yesterday. These properties were mailed notices and have 30 days to remedy the problem. Those that do not will 
be cited again and we will return to the Board to issue nuisance notices and seek approval for forced 
abatements.  



Item 6 

Register with the Contra Costa County Community Warning System  
It cannot be stressed enough the importance to take a moment to register cell phones with the Contra Costa 
County Community Warning System (CWS). CWS will alert you when life-threatening incidents, like wildfire 
or power shutdowns, occur. www.cwsalerts.com 



First Amendment to Lease Agreement between  
Kensington Fire Protection District and  

Kensington Police Protection and Community Services District for 
Occupancy of Kensington Public Safety Building  

- 1 -

FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN  
KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT AND  

KENSINGTON POLICE PROTECTION AND COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
FOR OCCUPANCY OF KENSINGTON PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING  

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT is hereby entered into this ___ day of June, 2020 by and 
between the Kensington Police Protection and Community Services District, a public agency 
(“KPPCSD”), and Kensington Fire Protection District, a public agency (“KFPD”). 

RECITALS 

A. KPPCSD and KFPD are parties to a Lease Agreement dated October 25, 2018
(“the Lease”) regarding that certain Premises within the public safety building located at 215/217 
Arlington Avenue, Kensington, California. 

B. The current term of the Lease ends on June 30, 2020.

C. The parties desire to extend the term of the Lease until September 30, 2020, after
which the Lease will continue as a month-to-month tenancy until notice of non-renewal is timely 
given, subject to the terms and conditions set forth below. 

NOW, THEREFORE, KPPCSD and KFPD hereby agree as follows: 

1. Recitals.  The Recitals are incorporated into this First Amendment as if fully set
forth in this Section 1. 

2. Definitions.  Any and all capitalized terms used herein, unless otherwise
specified, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Lease. 

3. Extension of Lease Term.  The Lease Term is hereby extended through to and
including September 30, 2020, under the same terms and conditions as set forth in the Lease, 
except as otherwise provided in this First Amendment.  On October 1, 2020, the Lease Term will 
be month-to-month until either party delivers thirty (30) days advance written notice of 
termination.  Any such termination shall be effective at the end of the month following the 
delivery of the notice. 

4. Other Provisions.  All other provisions of the Lease shall remain in effect.

5. Severability.  The parties hereto intend and believe that each provision in this
First Amendment comports with all applicable local, state and federal laws and judicial 
decisions.  However, if any provision in this First Amendment is found by a court of law to be in 
violation of any applicable ordinance, statute, law, administrative or judicial decision, or public 
policy, and if such court should declare such provision to be illegal, void or unenforceable as 

Item 7.1



First Amendment to Lease Agreement between  
Kensington Fire Protection District and  

Kensington Police Protection and Community Services District for 
Occupancy of Kensington Public Safety Building  

- 2 -

written, then such provision shall be given force to the fullest possible extent that the same is 
legal, valid and enforceable and the remainder of this First Amendment shall be construed as if 
such provision was not contained therein. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 
as of the date and year first above written. 

KENSINGTON FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT 

______________________________________ 
Julie Stein, President 

Approved as to form: 
DISTRICT COUNSEL 

______________________________________ 
John Bakker 

KENSINGTON POLICE PROTECTION 
AND COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

______________________________________ 
[Name], [Title] 

Item 7.1



Kensington Fire Protection District 
Action Plan for the Interim General Manager 

Status as of June 5, 2020 

Page 1 of 3 

Item 7.2 
Goals % 

Complete 
Status/Milestones Next Steps/Comments 

1. Effect a complete, orderly, and prompt transition of services
performed by the District’s current administrative support
contractor, including, but not limited to:  conducting exit
interviews, as needed, and ensuring the timely delivery from
contractor of all District property and records.

100%  KFPD resumed:  agenda, web 
posting, noticing, administrative 
roles 

 RGS continuing finance, minutes
until end of engagement

 Collected District property/records
 Received desk manual/procedures

2. Develop effective working relationships with the El Cerrito City
Manager and Fire Chief, the General Manager and administrative
staff of the Kensington Police Protection and Community Services
District (KPPCSD), Supervisor Gioia, and County administrative
staff as needed.

20% 
ongoing 

 Introductory conversation with Bill
Lyndsey/KPPCSD

 Meet w/Fire Chief re:  fee proposal

 Continue outreach/familiarization

3. Prepare the budget for the FY 2020-21 Fiscal Year for the June
2020 board meeting, to include: analyzing the District’s historic
practices in developing annual budget; providing budget guideline
policy recommendations; drafting a procedure for initiating
annual budget development; liaising with the El Cerrito Fire Chief
on the fire services fee proposal; and convening the Finance
Committee.

90%  Budget Guiding Principles
 Budget Development Manual
 Draft budget
 Finance Committee presentation
 Draft narrative report
 Budget document printed/posted

 Board presentation
 Board approval

4. Oversee, coordinate, and administer all activities related to a
potential renovation of the Public Safety Building, including, but
not limited to: negotiating a short-term renewal of the current
lease to KPPCSD; negotiating cost-sharing agreements with
KPPCSD for a potential renovation; and establishing temporary
facilities for the fire department and District administration.

25%  Worked w/Legal counsel on lease
 Reviewed project history
 Cost allocation methodologies

w/Finance Comm
 Special Meeting June 3, 2020
 Lease amendment to KPPCSD

 Executive Summary of project
evaluation process/actions

 Required information gaps
 Decision matrix for project

components/pros/cons
 Additional meetings

5. Analyze District needs for payments of bills and claims, including,
but not limited to: drafting and implementing updates as needed
to internal procedures for managing and making payments;
internal controls; and procedures for purchasing and credit card
usage.

30%  Purchasing Procedure outline
 Evaluating electronic payment

options
 Accounting services agreement

 Purchasing Procedure final
 Evaluate and implement workflow



Kensington Fire Protection District 
Action Plan for the Interim General Manager 

Status as of June 5, 2020 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Item 7.2 
Goals % 

Complete 
Status/Milestones Next Steps/Comments 

6. Serve as the primary administrative contact to the City of El 
Cerrito in matters of oversight, management, and compliance for 
the fire services contract between the District and El Cerrito. 

20% 
ongoing 

 Fire svc fee w/Finance Committee 
 Review agreement/history 

 Develop contacts 
 Review contract for compliance 

7. Serve as the primary administrative contact to the District’s 
information technology (IT) service provider to ensure the 
completion of all current and recommended IT and office 
infrastructure projects.  

20% 
ongoing 

 Discussion with Nerd Crossing 
 Email migration project closeout 

 Business Needs Assessment 
 IT Master Plan 
 Propose to Board of Directors 

8. Analyze District participation and needs regarding the District’s 
California Employers’ Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT) Fund. 
Prepare and implement a procedure for administration of legacy 
health benefits payments. 

20%  OPEB Actuary Proposals 
 Complete CalPERS documents 

 Board approval of documents 
 Select/recommend actuary 
 OPEB Actuarial Valuation 

9. Assess and make recommendations on cost-saving opportunities 
and the possible outsourcing of some District administrative 
functions or employment of additional staff or consultants as 
necessary. 

40%  Data gathering 
 Conceptual plan in progress 
 Student Intern, Admin Assistant, 

Accounting services 

 Complete evaluation 
 Developing staffing/service plan 
 Propose to Board of Directors 

10. Develop a Long-Term Financial Plan which ensures sustainability 
for providing District services, including but not limited 
to:  drafting a long-term plan policy; forecasting revenue and 
expenditures, using relevant inflation factors or other information; 
incorporating known or foreseeable changes in District 
operations; and presenting plan to the Finance Committee then 
Board of Directors for approval. 

30%  Policy in progress 
 Initial plan reviewed w/Finance 

Committee 

 Finalize ten-year plan 
 Complete proposed policy 
 Develop procedure for updates 

11. Establish a Records Management Policy and Records Retention 
Schedule in accordance with the California Public Records Act 
(PRA), Government Code Section 12236 and recommended 
practices, including but not limited to:  drafting a records 
management policy; developing a records retention schedule 
encompassing District records (specifically and/or by category); 
and providing public with the process for PRA requests. 

20%  Begin list of District records  Evaluate current policy 
 Incorporate missing components 
 List of records by category 



Kensington Fire Protection District 
Action Plan for the Interim General Manager 

Status as of June 5, 2020 

Page 3 of 3 

Item 7.2 
Goals % 

Complete 
Status/Milestones Next Steps/Comments 

12. Apply for or renew, as applicable, certifications recommended by
local government best practices, including but not limited to:
Special District Leadership Foundation (SDLF) District
Transparency Certificate of Excellence; SDLF District of
Distinction Accreditation; and others as identified.

10%  Review application, list needs  Address items requiring
development/update

 Update website as needed
 Submit application

13. Produce a final report to the District board of directors assessing
the status of District administration and recommendations for
future revision of District administrative functions.

20%  Action Plan to accompany report
 Condition assessment

 Policy revisions (as warranted)



	Item 3.1_Draft Minutes 01 25 20 SM
	Item 3.1_Draft Minutes 01 25 20
	Item 3.1_Draft Minutes 03 04 20 SM
	Item 3.1_Draft Minutes 03 04 20
	Item 3.1_Draft Minutes 03 11 20 SM
	Item 3.1_Draft Minutes 03 11 20
	Item 3.1_Draft Minutes 04 08 20
	Item 3.1_Draft Minutes 04 15 20 SM
	Item 3.1_Draft Minutes 05 01 20 SM
	Item 3.2_Engine 165 May 2020 Incident Report
	Item 3.2_Kensington May 2020 Incident Reports
	Item 3.2_May 2020 KFPD Incident Actiivity Report
	Item 3.3_Balance Sheet 4-30-20 6.10.2020
	Item 3.3_Revenue and Expense Year To Date 6.10.2020
	Item 3.4_Transmittal TC52-Kensington 06-10-20
	Item 3.5_Gann Limit Letter
	Item 3.5_Resolution Gann Limit
	Item 3.6_Resolution 20-06 Special Tax on CCC Roll
	Item 3.6_SR_Special Tax on CCC Roll
	Item 4.1_Fire Service Contract Fee Calculation
	Item 4.1_Fire Service Contract Fee Letter
	Item 4.1_SR_Fire Service Contract Fee
	Item 4.2_Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget
	Item 4.2_Resolution 20-07 Adopt Preliminary Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget
	Item 4.2_SR_Adopt Preliminary FY 2020-21 Budget Resolution 20-07
	Item 4.3_RGS April Report
	Item 4.3_RGS Invoice 4.2020
	Item 4.3_Transmittal TC52-Kensington 06-10-20 #2
	Item 4.5_Policy 130 - Pay Periods and Timesheets
	Item 4.5_SR_Payroll Approval
	Item 4.6_Employee Handbook Policy No. 170 DHR Policy [DRAFT v.1 06-01-2020] [REDLINE] (1)
	Item 4.7_Employee Handbook Policy No. 180 Complaint & Investigation Procedures [DRAFT v.1 06-01-2020] [CLEAN]
	Item 4.7_Employee Handbook Policy No. 180 Complaint & Investigation Procedures [DRAFT v.1 06-01-2020] [REDLINE] (1)
	Item 4.8_Employee Handbook Policy No. 185 Training Requirements [DRAFT v.1 06-01-2020] [CLEAN] (1)
	Item 4.8_Employee Handbook TOC [DRAFT v.1 06-01-2020] [CLEAN] (1)
	Item 4.8_Employee Handbook TOC [DRAFT v.1 06-01-2020] [REDLINE] (1)
	Item 4.10_EPC Traffic Study Recommendations Priority List
	Item 4.10_Traffic Study Executive Summary
	Item 6_June 2020 Fire Chief's Report
	Item 7.1_KPPCSD Lease Amendment
	Item 7.2_Action Plan Update
	Regular Meeting Agenda 6.10.2020



